NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
comprise the provision of cruise ship charter services,

hotel operations and property investments.

During the year, the Group ceased to engage in the
provision of property information and professional

valuation services through its websites.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited. New Century Investment
Pacific Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the
directors, Huang Group (BVI) Limited which is
beneficially and wholly-owned by a discretionary trust,
is the parent and the ultimate holding company of the

company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R &R M EE
31 March 2006 —ZEXF=ZF=1+—-H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2R B

P62

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, cruise ships, office premises,
embedded derivative financial instruments and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars ("HK$") except when otherwise indicated.
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Basis of consolidation mEER%E
The consolidated financial statements include the 4R

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2006. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on

consolidation.

EMBEREREBEANRF REEMN B
RABE_TERF=ZA=+—H1E
FRZUVHHRER - AKBECFH A
B U EAAgFEZ TEUE
FTEE - B AR ZEETI D Bk
BEH (AIANEEERGZESZEZR)E
AR B®mEK - UIHETTALRS
MG mE  BEEZEHERILERILE -
AREBALRRBEZABEERRZR S R
HBeRANRBEEERAEFEE -

o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of
the business combinations to the fair value of the
assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the

acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the

Company's subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group
and are adopted for the first time for the current year's

financial statements:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.2 i3] B & &

FINANCIAL
(continued)

HKAS 39
Amendment
HKFRS 2

HKFRS 3

HKFRS 5

HK(SIC)-Int 21

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORTING STANDARDS

Transition and Initial Recognition of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Share-based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations

Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued

Non-depreciable Assets
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31 March 2006
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HK-Int 4 Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong

Land Leases

HKAS 40 “Investment Property” is also effective for
accounting periods beginning or after 1 April 2005,
however, the Group early adopted HKAS 40 for the
preparation of its financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2005.

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19,
21, 23, 27, 28, 33, 36, 37 and HK-Int 4 has had no
material impact on the accounting policies of the Group
and the Company and the methods of computation in

the Group’s and the Company's financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority
interests on the face of the consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement

of changes in equity and other disclosures.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties

and affected the Group's related party disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 s BRI EM R EH

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A 2 522 (4)

(continued)

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is KAWEMBE BN BMELER 2 EHM
summarised as follows: MR

(@) HKAS 17 - Leases
In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held
for own use were stated at 2005 valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment

losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s
leasehold interest in land and buildings is
separated into leasehold land and buildings. The
Group's leasehold land is classified as an operating
lease, because the title of the land is not expected
to pass to the Group by the end of the lease
term, and is reclassified from property, plant and
equipment to prepaid land premiums, while
buildings continue to be classified as part of
property, plant and equipment. Prepaid land
premiums for land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease

term.

The comparative amounts for the year ended 31
March 2005 in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated
statement of changes in equity have been restated
upon the adoption of the HKAS 17. The effects of
these changes are summarised in note 2.4 to the

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 #is] RiRIEsI BB H &5 #
Al Z & (&)

L —

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial
Instruments
(1) Equity securities and club debentures
In prior years, the Group classified its
investments in equity securities for trading
purposes as short term investments, and were
stated at their fair values on an individual
basis with gains and losses recognised in the
income statement. Upon the adoption of
HKAS 39, these securities held by the Group
at 1 April 2005 in the amount of
HK$53,811,000 are designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss under
the transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and
accordingly are stated at fair value with gains
or losses being recognised in the income

statement.

In prior years, the Group and the Company
classified its investments in club debentures
as other assets, which were held for non-
trading purposes and were stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Upon the adoption of
HKAS 39, these club debentures held by the
Group and the Company at 1 April 2005 in
the amount of HK$780,000 are designated
as available-for-sale financial assets under the
transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and
accordingly are stated at fair value with gains
or losses being recognised as a separate
component of equity until subsequent

derecognition or impairment.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in
any change in the measurement of these
equity securities. Comparative amounts have

been reclassified for presentation purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 =—ZFEAF=A=1—-H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial
Instruments (continued)

(i) Convertible bonds
In prior years, convertible bonds were stated
at amortised cost. Upon the adoption of HKAS
39, convertible bonds are bifurcated into a
debt component and an embedded derivative
component. The effects of the above changes
are summarised in note 2.4 to the financial

statements.

(c) HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment
In prior years, no recognition and measurement
of share-based payment transactions in which
employees (including directors) were granted share
options over shares in the Company were required
until such options were exercised by employees,
at which time the share capital and share premium

were credited with the proceeds received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees
(including directors) render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”), the cost of the equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which

the instruments are granted.

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group and
the Company is the recognition of the cost of
these transactions and a corresponding entry to
equity for employee share options. The revised
accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions is described in more detail in note
2.5 “Summary of significant accounting policies”

below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

The Group and the Company have adopted the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 under which
the new measurement policies have not been
applied to (i) options granted to employees on or
before 7 November 2002; and (ii) options granted
to employees after 7 November 2002 but which
had vested before 1 April 2005.

As the Group and the Company did not have any
employee share options which were granted during
the period from 7 November 2002 to 31 March
2005 but had not yet vested as at 1 April 2005,
the adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no impact on
the retained profits as at 31 March 2004 and at
31 March 2005. The Group and the Company
have recognised the cost of options which were
granted during the year in the current year's
income statement in accordance with the revised

accounting policy.

The effects of adopting HKFRS 2 are summarised

in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 #is] RiRIEsI BB H &5 #
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(c) HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2 2 sl R EMEREH#E

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(d) HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and
HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 was capitalised and amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life and was subject to impairment testing when
there was any indication of impairment. Negative
goodwill was carried in the balance sheet and
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a systematic basis over the remaining
average useful life of the acquired depreciable/

amortisable assets.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36 has
resulted in the Group ceasing annual goodwill
amortisation and commencing testing for
impairment at the cash-generating unit level
annually (or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value

may be impaired).

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition of subsidiaries (previously referred to
as negative goodwill), after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 36 - Impairment of Assets
(continued)

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have
required the Group to eliminate at 1 April 2005
the carrying amounts of accumulated amortisation
with a corresponding adjustment to the cost of
goodwill and to derecognise at 1 April 2005 the
carrying amounts of negative goodwill (including
that remaining in the consolidated capital reserve)
against retained profits. Goodwill previously
eliminated against the retained earnings remains
eliminated against the retained earnings and is
not recognised in the income statement when all
or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes

impaired.

The effects of the above changes are summarised
in note 14 to the financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 3, comparative amounts have not been

restated.
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 #is] RiRIEsI BB H &5 #
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(d) HKFRS 3 — Business Combinations and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2 2 sl R EMEREH#E

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(e) HKFRS 5 — Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations

The Group has applied HKFRS 5 prospectively in
accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 5, which has resulted in a change in
accounting policy on the recognition of a
discontinued operation. Under the previous SSAP
33 "Discontinuing Operations”, the Group would
recognise a discontinued operation at the earlier

of:

+ the date the Group entered into a binding

sale agreement; and

«  the date the board of directors had approved

and announced a formal disposal plan.

HKFRS 5 requires a component of the Group to
be classified as discontinued when the criteria to
be classified as held for sale have been met or
when that component of the Group has been
disposed of. An item is classified as held for sale
if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. Such a component represents a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale. The adoption of HKFRS 5 has not resulted
in any change in the measurement and

presentation of a discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF #% ¥ & MY &%
31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A
2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 iz REZETEHBMGRE S
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al 2 2% (48)
(continued)

(f) HK(SIC)-Int 21 — Income Taxes — Recovery (f) BEBSIC)—RBE215: — Fr

of Revalued Non-depreciable Assets

In prior periods, deferred tax arising on the
revaluation of investment properties was
recognised based on the tax rate that would be
applicable upon the sale of the investment

properties.

Upon the adoption of HK(SIC)-Int 21, deferred
tax arising on the revaluation of the Group’s
investment properties is determined depending
on whether the properties will be recovered
through use or through sale. The Group has
determined that its investment properties will be
recovered through use, and accordingly the profits
tax rate has been applied to the calculation of

deferred tax.

The effects of the above changes are summarised
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The change
has been adopted retrospectively from the earliest
period presented and comparative amounts have

been restated.
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Bt 7% ¥} & MY &F

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2 3C/EHEMKXERZEFTEHH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEEZE
STANDARDS

REBHARANTHEREREATIE

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements. Unless otherwise

stated, these HKFRSs are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKAS 21 Amendment  Net Investments in a Foreign
Operation

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a

Lease

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The
revised standard will affect the disclosures about
qualitative information about the Group's objective,
policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative
data about what the Company regards as capital; and
compliance with any capital requirements and the

consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 requires disclosures relating to financial
instruments and incorporates many of the disclosure
requirements of HKAS32. This HKFRS shall be applied
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007.

BB R R ER G REIERTER
MBHREER - BB BEIN - ZF
EEMBHRELEANR_FTZTF—A
— BRI ZFE IR AR

A £A BEARHE
E15 (1B8E])

BAE G ER G INFETS 2 &
E215% (fB31) &BF5E

A G £ SRERELD
EIERE B
B 75 R 5 4 Al

5458 (B 7T)
ERYHmE
HERFE T

SR T A : BEE

BB (BB 75 RTE -BLZHER
RERES LTEEHE
Be) %%

55455

BERSAENEZ IR (BT AR -ZE
TLE-A-BRZ2ERABZFEY
BERA - RIEFTERSGEEAREAE
Ry BRRAEEETBBEZEMN
ERBEE  BRAARRBRAERZE
EENBE  UREBAETEMNESR
ERRTEFTZ BRI HEE -

BEEUBHREERETIRREABEAS
MTAEZEE  WERESESFLEL
BI2F|ZRBOBERTE - WESH
BB EEABEANR ST EF—
R—Bsiz#&MBz FEEHE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39
regarding financial guarantee contracts, financial
guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i)
the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18. As at the balance sheet
date, certain of the banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries are guaranteed by the Company (note 34).
The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of this revised HKFRS but is not yet in a
position state whether this revised HKFRS would have
a significant impact on the results of its operations

and financial position.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the
adoption of the pronouncements listed above will not
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements in the period of initial application.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

23EEMBEMKRERZETEMS

MEEANZHE (H)

BREEZESFEREIOREHAS M
BRAENZIER  RERSQONF
EAVFEERER  HERZNIIMES
ZEEEFE  WVREFBSTER
FITHREBEE BB R (DY ZHERE
BB (Em) RIEFE ST ERE
18R HER Z RIEHH - RNAEER -
BRrYM@BAmzE TRITREIBA
RAEER (M E34) - AERBEEEH
AT L TR ERT &8 B 15 s XA
ZRE  BERERELBRLERE
AEVBHREENSTHHEEEX

BEMBARRAERERTE -

Br ESCRTatE SN - REBEHEA L
MERARNEBYIE NS HAREE 2
MBEHRRENEMERTE -
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Bf 7% 3 3k K 5

31 March 2006 Z=—ZEEXNF=ZHF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 24 € BE TN ZHEWME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) HZmEEEEBERZEE

Group pig==4
Effect of adopting
RN TEEZ Y8
HKASs 32 HK(SIC)
At 1 April 2005 HKAS 1% HKAS 17% and 39* HKAS 39 -Int 21*
i
ik &k Rl A
&t Gt EXY5iAd ERl (IO~
R-FFa§MA-A 15 F17%¢ RE395 £395" REENR
Convertible
bonds and Deferred
Change in embedded tax on
Prepaid classification derivative revaluation
Effect of new policies land of equity financial of investment
(Increase/(decrease)) Presentation premiums investments instruments properties Total
MARER Eff
RERE RANETE RENEL
HEEZYEEN/ (BD) 271 BHE ARZER $RIA i GRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEx TEL TERL TEn T
Assets BE
P76 Property, plant and n% HER
- equipment & - (49175) - - - (49,175)
Prepaid land premiums BB
(non-current portion) (¥RBHS) - 19,553 - - - 19,553
Available-for-sale financial AHEE SR
assets BE - - 780 - - 780
Other assets EEE - - (780) - - (780)
Prepaid land premiums BB
(current portion) (RBH72) - 927 - - - 927
Equity investments at ERERRATER
fair value through S 2R
profit or loss K - - 53,811 - - 53811
Short term investments RHRE - - (53,811) - - (53,811)
(28695)
Liabilities/equity a8/ RE
Trade payables, accruals, other EREARN - BHTE
payables and deposits received ~ EMEREARDUES - - - (220) - (220)
Embedded derivative REGEE!
financial instruments T4 - - - 128,963 - 128,963
Convertible bonds TERES - - - (78,342) - (78342)
Loans advanced from REEMBRAZ
minority shareholders of SHRRBNZ
the Group's subsidiaries B 39,158 - - - - 39,158
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE - (4,898) - - 30,816 25,918
Property revaluation reserve NEEHER - (23,778) - - - (23,778)
Retained profits REEF - (19) - (50,401) (30,816) (81,236)
Minority interests LERFER (39,158) - - - - (39,158)
(28,695)
*  Adjustment taken effect prospectively from 1 April O RZEZRFMA —HAEAES
2005 EEE

*  Adjustments/presentation taken effect #

EBEPERZBHE 27
retrospectively
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31 March 2006 Z=—ZFEANE=ZF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 2 A€ B E Z S 2 = (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet ) HIGREEEARRERZEE
(continued) (%)

Company KA F

Effect of adopting
RMUTREZRE

HKASs 32*
At 1 April 2005 and 39* HKAS 39*
AR gL
E325* o
RZZETREMA—H R E3 EAIFEI95E*
Convertible
bonds and
Change in  embedded
classification derivative
Effect of new policies of equity financial
(Increase/(decrease)) investments  instruments Total
AR E S
BERE KkAEITE
FEERzwEOEm/ ChD)) DEZEN THIA & #
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 P77
FTAT TAET TAET -
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEE s EREE 780 - 780
Other assets Hi&E (780) - (780)
Liabilities/equity a8 RE
Trade payables, accruals, other ENE SRR - EarE -
payables and deposits received HiEAERREWIEZS - (220) (220)
Embedded derivative financial SiTE SR
instruments IA - 128,963 128,963
Convertible bonds AR ES - (78,342) (78,342)
Retained profits R BB 4 A - (50,401) (50,401)
*  Adjustment taken effect prospectively from 1 April * BZERFOA-HAIEAMZ

2005

* Adjustment/presentation taken effect retrospectively *

e
O
il

BEMERzAE, 2
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES AR ENZEZEH = (&)
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet ) HIGREEEAERZEE
(continued) (%)
Group &
Effect of adopting
BRNTREZY
HKASs 32 HKFRS 2 HK(SIC)
At 31 March 2006 HKAS 1 HKAS 17 and 39 HKAS 39 -Int 21
X
X B B ER i ERUH
B ER B ER FRHR &l HEEH  BEESIO)-
RZB2REZA=+-H 1% F17% £39% #3905 £28  RBENR
Convertible
bonds and Deferred
Change in embedded Equity- tax on
Prepaid  classification derivative settled revaluation
Effect of new policies land of equity financial ~ share option  of investment
(Increase/(decrease)) Presentation premiums  investments instruments  arrangements properties Total
TRRES Bff
hERE RAEHE HUREEEZ RENFZ
FREZEE (M (HD)) 23 AHE SEZEY SRIE BREZS BERE RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TER TR TR TER TERL
Assets gE
Property, plant and nE - BER
equipment B - (46,986) - - - - (46,986)
Prepaid land premiums EftE
(non-current portion) (FRHH) - 17,958 - - - - 17,958
Available-for-sale NHEEL
financial assets tREE - - 780 - - - 780
Other assets HEE - - (780) - - - (780)
Prepaid land premiums BB
(current portion) (RBHH) - 850 - - - - 850
Equity investments at BRBRRRAT
fair value through BEIIKRZ
profit or loss RERE - - 34318 - - - 34318
Short term investments SRS - - (34,318) - - - (34318)
(28,178)
Liabilities/equity i/ RE
Trade payables, accruals, ERESET - E:f
other payables and HE - EBERER
deposits received REMES - - - (119) - - (119)
Embedded derivative NEfTEeR
financial instruments I8 - - - 11,891 - - 11,891
Convertible bonds THRES - - - (15,407) - - (15,407)
Loans advanced from FEEMERAZ
minority shareholders of LURRERZ
the Group's subsidiaries % 177843 - - - - - 177843
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHBAE - (4,898) - - - 31,566 26,668
Share premium BiniEE - - - (37,137) 1,168 - (35,969)
Share option reserve ERERE - - - - 5,890 - 5,890
Property revaluation reserve M EfEEE - (23,555) - - - - (23,555)
Retained profits REEF - 275 - 40,772 (7,058) (31,566) 2,423
Minority interests DHBR R ER (177,843) - - - - - (177,843)

(28,178)
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B 7% ¥R 3= Mt 5F

31 March 2006 Z=—ZFEANE=ZF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES A BRENZEZEME (&)
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

it EEEBERZYE

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet

(Continued) (%)
Company AAT
Effect of adopting
BMmUTEEZHE
HKASs 32
At 31 March 2006 and 39 HKAS 39 HKFRS 2
i
S ER i E#
ERYA 95 i ES BMBHRE
R-ZBEXE=ZA=+-H £39% £39% ERIE25
Convertible
bonds and
Change in embedded Equity-
classification derivative settled
Effect of new policies of equity financial ~ share option
(Increase/(decrease)) investments  instruments arrangements Total
TRRES MR P79
RERE RABHE HEZ _—
FBEzEE N/ (BD)) PEZEH ¢RMIA BRERY CES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT TER
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AHEE
financial assets SHEE 780 - - 780
Other assets HthEE (780) - - (780)
Liabilities/equity BE/RE
Trade payables, accruals, other BB ZHRHK - B 5E
payables and deposits received ~ HEMERERKEWES - (119) - (119)
Embedded derivative financial NEfTESR
instruments TH - 11,891 - 11,891
Convertible bonds AR RER - (15,407) - (15,407)
Share premium B 5 (B - (37,137) 1,168 (35,969)
Share option reserve ElREREE - - 5,890 5,890
Retained profits vl - 40,772 (7,058) 33,714
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES AR ENZEZEH = (&)
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 (b) R =—ZZ2MNFHNAE—HR
April 2004 and at 1 April 2005 —EELFNA-HZ2RE
Rz '
Group EE

Effect of adopting
RBUTRBEZRE

HK(SIC)-
HKAS 39* HKAS 17¢ Int 21*
BB BA FE(SIO)
EaEEl EREEl RE-
F39%* EANL A F215+
Convertible
bonds and
embedded Deferred tax
derivative Prepaid on revaluation
P80 Effect of new policies financial land  of investment
(Increase/(decrease)) instruments premiums properties Total
AR5 Bt
kAE0TE RENEZ
MBRZEZEEM/ (D)) ERMIA BRE BB B A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET TERT THET
1 April 2004 “Z2ZMEWNA-H
Property revaluation reserve NEELRE - (8,748) - (8,748)
Retained profits wERT - - (15,127) (15,127)
(23,875)
1 April 2005 “Z2TREWA-H
Property revaluation reserve MEEMEE - (23,778) - (23,778)
Retained profits wE R (50,401) (19) (30,816) (81,236)

(105,014)
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31 March 2006 Z=—ZFEANE=ZF=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES A BRENZEZEME (&)
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 (b) R =—ZZ2NFHNAE—BR
April 2004 and at 1 April 2005 —EZERFMA-—B2ZRE
(Continued) EHRzEE (A)

Company KA F

Effect of adopting
FRANAT 2 &
HKAS 39*
Convertible bonds
and embedded

Effect of new policies derivative financial
(Increase/(decrease)) instruments
EE LR
S 395%*
Al # AR (B 25
MR 2 2 0Em/ Cld)) NETEESBITA
HK$'000 P81
F%& T
1 April 2005 —EERFWMA—H
Retained profits RE & A (50,401)
There was no impact on the Company’s equity RZZETZWFWA—B - §EARF 2
at 1 April 2004. I REX MAE (R 22 o
*  Adjustment taken effect prospectively from 1 * E_ZETETRFNA —HRABEERZ
April 2005 EEES

#  Adjustment taken effect retrospectively O BBBMERZAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %% ¥R & MY 5
3/ March 2006 Z=—ZEEXFZA=+-H
2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2AERBURENMZHEME (&

(c) HBZ-SEENER=-ZZ
EFFEF=BA=1+—HLEEEZ

(c¢) Effect on the consolidated income

Ay
Ay

statement for the years ended 31 March

2006 and 2005 FmEeklERoTE
Group rEH
Effect of adopting
BOUTREZEE
HKAS 17 HKAS 39 HKFRS 2 HK(SIC)-Int 21
EREHEN EBHeHEN BRAUEEE E#(SIC)-
F17% F39% EB %25 REENS
Convertible
bonds and
embedded Deferred tax
Prepaid derivative Employee  on revaluation
land financial share option  of investment
Effect of new policies premiums instruments scheme properties Total
TRRES EftRE
RAgfiz kg VEA
TRRZYE BAHE SRIA BRESE EEHE RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Year ended 31 March BE-BEAREZA
P82 2006 St-BLEE
Decrease/(increase) in TREIZRY/
administrative expenses (B 517 - (7,058) - (6,541)
Increase in finance costs ~ BEMARZEM - (21,295) - - (21,295)
Increase in fair value gains ~ MEFTESHBIA
on embedded derivative 2 AT EBME
financial instruments 21* il - 112,468 - - 112,468
Increase in other operating 14 & AR
income less (expenses) (F??Z\ ZEM (223) - - - (223)
Increase in tax HIE2Em - - - (750) (750)
Total increase/ (decrease) &% 2271,/
in profit (f2) g 294 91,173 (7,058) (750) 83,659
Increase/(decrease) in GREXRNZ
basic eamings per share 101,/ (A 4) HK0.03 cent  HK9.50 cents  HK(0.74) cent ~ HK(0.08) cent ~ HK8.71 cents
Increase/(decrease) in GREERN
diluted earnings per share 211,/ (D) HK0.03 cent  HK7.98 cents  HK(0.62) cent  HK(0.07) cent HK7.32 cents
Year ended 31 March BE-2215ZR
2005 =t-HLFE
Increase in administrative ~ {THE 22
expenses Zm (19) - - - (19)
Increase in tax REZEM - - - (15,689) (15,689)
Total decrease in profit B R B (19) - - (15,689) (15,708)
Decrease in basic GREXRMN
earnings per share e - - - HK(1.87) cents  HK(1.87) cents
Decrease in diluted BREERN
eamings per share e - - - HK(1.62) cents  HK(1.62) cents




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Effect on the consolidated income
statement for the years ended 31 March
2006 and 2005 (Continued)

Company

Effect of new policies

FBRzTE

Year ended 31 March
2006

Decrease/(increase) in
administrative expenses

Increase in finance costs

Increase in fair value gains
on embedded derivative
financial instruments

Total increase/(decrease) in
profit

Increase/(decrease) in basic
earnings per share

Increase/(decrease) in diluted

earnings per share

There was no impact on the Company's income

statements for the year ended 31 March 2005.

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN 248 :tBEEN 2 E W E (&)

(c) HIBZE-_ZEERER_ZEZE
AEF=ZBA=+—BLEFEZ

mekakzEE (8
AAF
Effect of adopting
RAMUTEEZEE
HKAS 39 HKFRS2
ERGHER BERUBRE
2 3955 % B S8 2%
Convertible
bonds and
embedded
derivative Employee
financial share option
instruments scheme Total
TRRES
RABITE B8
EWMIA BRETE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
BE-_2TX¥=A

=t+—-HLFE
TERAZ 2R/

(3 mn) - (7,058) (7,058)
BE BN 2 N (21,295) - (21,295)
NETESBMIA

ZAFEERR

e pil 112,468 - 112,468
Az g m/

CR ) # 58 91,173 (7,058) 84,115

BREARAMNZ

#m,/ (fd) HK9.50 cents  HK(0.74) cent

HK8.76 cents

BREFRMN

#Em,/ CR ) HK7.98 cents  HK(0.62) cent

HK7.36 cents

HAARNBE-FEEF=A=1—
BLEFE2 MR RETHE -
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31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25T EE:tHEME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint
venture's operations and any distributions of surplus
assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion
to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance

with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

Bt /8~ F)
MEBARRARATEEKEEEHH
BN ERRANARAEERHSm 2

=
T o

M8~ RZ A TR W B B
HEINARNRBWERERA - RRAR
M B8~ R) 2 M 51 Y 38 A AN BB AT
EEBEIIRK -

Joint ventures BE QA
A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual BERNREAEREEMALTAESH
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties TR N HBHEITEBESE MK 2
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture HEE - S ARIABE AR AL
P84 operates as a separate entity in which the Group and & MAKEEREMATHREER
S the other parties have an interest. AR ER -

BEALRIIZEEHERTAZEA
THRIEIAZES  /ZERREEZLE
HELRERRAEERRREREEM
KB ZEE - REREXRBAZEN
MEBRMENBHREEZDKIEIHRA
EALTRESESE A ZEELPINRE

BEWHEGRMED -
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B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25FEE:tHERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is treated as:

C))

(®)

(©

(d)

a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly

or indirectly, over the joint venture;

an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.

=R-—NNCINE
AL A
=

ERARAR S

@ —FHBAT  WARXEAEE
ERMEE S ERGAEAT

(b) —KHEFZEHER  HAEEE
EEEXEEESmZESMER K

FEH & E QA

(o) —REERA  MAKEEER
EIEEETEIARZEEE
RNE - BE-REFEBELEARZE
MR DRHR20% - BEEHE
ERABAITEEARFESN &K

(d) —EREFBSTEAFEINRA
FRZBERE  MARBERZEX
MEF/FEEE QA ZEMEA D
20% - EE R FZEGEE R
A MERHEEEARITEERXR

B2 48R
FEN
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31 March 2006 Z=ZEEANF=ZF=+—-H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F EZE€:tH R E (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position

to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group's share of the fair value of the
identificable assets and liabilities acquired as at the

date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life

of three to five years.

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated by reference to the net assets at the date
off disposal, including the attributable amount of
goodwill which remains unamortised and any relevant

reserves, as appropriate.

2001 EREEEE - BRI HAEITHEER

FENZEE-

ANEB PTG 2 A P AB 1R 48 S
EWORFABREREREEEHE
Mo REBMEBE AR ERRERE
BEDARASENHEEFERE
AR EBRIAGEEERER -

PS6 Goodwill BmE
_ Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005: BHARBEZ —_EEAF=—_HA=+—H
IEFE -

WEHBAREEZHERBENE
HaREBERENKEBRRABAZ
AR EBEERBBEZAFEEZH
B ©

WETReEEEGRAEEREBERNA
BRAEE  LWIREMGAIERFEH
SERFNEREHENE -

HEMBARR  HEBRSRNLE
Bz FEEANE  XEEEEMmD
REH 2 ERBNEMNEBHE
(RIBAME) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:
(continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss
was caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that was not expected to recur, and
subsequent external events have occurred which have

reversed the effect of that event.

Negative goodwill
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the Group’s share
of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
as at the date of acquisition, over the cost of the

acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be
measured reliably, but which do not represent
identifiable liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that
portion of negative goodwill is recognised as income
in the consolidated profit and loss account when the

future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at
the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account on a
systematic basis over the remaining average useful life
of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets of 12
months. The amount of any negative goodwill in excess
of the fair values of the acquired non-monetary assets

is recognised as income immediately.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25X EZEE:HBEM = (&)

e (&)

BRAREE _FERF=HA=+—H
WHFE - (8)
HAEZEREEEEFRN  AEES
B2 BT EEREMR - 18 EHER
ZHEEBREBETSEHE - BRIERE
EBERAMERSKAEEBREEILEZ
SMVESEHMSIE - WRREE B RS
EREABEH R EYE I INES
fF RIE R & o

LGSR

BRAREE _FERF=HA=+—H
IFFE -
WENBARELEZARMERAEH
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POLICIES (continued)

Negative goodwill (continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:
(continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated by reference to the net assets at the
date of disposal, including the attributable amount of
negative goodwill which has not been recognised in
the consolidated profit and loss account and any

relevant reserves as appropriate.

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets, investment
properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which

the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, however not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25FEZEtHBRME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control

over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in
(d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of

any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 5% %

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of an item of property, plant and equipment,
and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional

cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the property revaluation reserve and
cruise ship revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 %
POLICIES (continued)

ERTBRME (&)

M - BERRBRITE ()

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

FEREME  WMELRBER ZMG
FHRIE R FHAA B ARVEMEE A AR 3k

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to

write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,

plant and equipment to its residual value over its HEZHERNAREENHE - AHEMAZ
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used FEFRMT :
for this purpose are as follows:
Hotel properties Over the remaining lease ENFE B JE ) % BRHEE
in Indonesia terms FH
Office premises Over the remaining lease EEMOEYE RRSEE
in Hong Kong terms F 5
Leasehold Over the remaining lease HEMEXKE BRFHEE
improvements terms FH
Plant and machinery 10% to 20% R 55 Bo i 28 10% — 20%
P92 Furniture, fixtures =® ﬁA; HE
_— and equipment 10% to 33'/5% S 10% —33'/5%
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
Cruise ships 7 to 8% B U 7 — 8%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F %=

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which

reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income

statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income

statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

A property under development is a project in which
the Group has an interest either as the developer or
as the ultimate owner of the completed property. An
interest in a property under development, which is
intended for sale, is stated at cost or carrying amount
at the date of change of the intended use of the

property, less any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (continued)

Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:
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The Group classified its equity investments, other than AEBEGHRERE (WBBEQF - B
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities, BANTINEREEEEERIN DEE
as other assets and short term investments. HtEENMEGBHKSE -

Other assets H i & &=

Other assets are non-trading investments in club
debentures intended to be held on a long term basis,

which are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity
securities held for trading purposes and are stated at
their fair values on the basis of their quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual
investment basis. The gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of a security are credited or
charged to the income statement in the period in which

they arise.

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance

sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that
the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets classified as held for trading are
included in the category “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Gains or losses on investments

held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the

amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets represent investments
in club debentures. Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity securities that are designated as available for
sale or are not classified in any of the other two
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains
or losses recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in

equity is included in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments in club debentures and
investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted
market bid prices at the close of business at the balance

sheet date.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 March 2006)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset

or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the

impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F ESHHBEHE (8)
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 March 2006) (continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is
included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included

in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity
to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not

reversed through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 March 2006) (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Impairment losses on debt investments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event,
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable
to the year ended 31 March 2006)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised where:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

«  the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay in full without material delay to a third party

under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25FEZEtHBRME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable RERTMEE CEARBE=

to the year ended 31 March 2006) (continued) ERE=ZA=+T—HILLEE) (,.;)
Where continuing involvement takes the form of a fisi LA Py 82 “”ﬁixziﬁ&/jiﬁﬁi\
written and/or purchased option (including a cash- ER(BENReEEZEE®RIRA
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred PHEX) 2 e RIFB S K& - AIREE
asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement WESRZBERNEEAELOZ MR
is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group BEREESRE  MNAERQATEEE
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put ZEEZERRGHE (BREARS
option (including a cash-settled option or similar HEE 2 BREFRSELEX) RIRIN -
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where TFUBERT REERES N IEE
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is RENFAEEEE A FEERER
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred BTEEMRER 2BEE -

asset and the option exercise price.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings FFERERKRER
P100 All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the FIEERRER—EY) T RMABERR
- fair value of the consideration received less directly BEREEEREZZIRAN 2 AT EBERE
attributable transaction costs. R e
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and VI HERE  FTEERRERELEEF
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised RERENMBIZRBIHKNATE -

cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss BB ERERR  FiE#IEHRBIE
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through 7% N Sk BT 18 F A N HE R o

the amortisation process.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F %

POLICIES (continued)

Convertible bonds
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:

Convertible bonds were stated at amortised cost.
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006:

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the balance sheet, net of transaction costs. On the
issue of the convertible bonds, the fair value of the
conversion option is determined using Binomial model;
and this amount is carried as current liabilities
(embedded derivative financial instruments) and
remeasured to its fair value in subsequent balance
sheet dates with the change in fair value charged to
the income statement. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to host contract liability component; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The carrying amount of embedded
derivative financial instrument is remeasured in

subsequent years.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable
to the year ended 31 March 2006)
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised

in profit or loss.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2_5$§'§=‘%‘+H%$ﬂi§ (#8)

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion

and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash

management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to

use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or

a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25FEE:tHERBE (&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R &R M EE
31 March 2006 —ZEXF=ZF=1+—-H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F EZE€:tH R E (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised except:

« where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be utilised.

Frig®i (&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25X Eg

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a) cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing such activities;

(b) slot-machine income, on the sharing basis over
the total cash receipt from the slot machines

placed in the cruise ships;

(c¢) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;

(d) service income and income from hotel operations,

when the services are rendered;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F ESHHBEHE (8)

P106

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments

("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a Binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 29. In valuing equity-
settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked
to the price of the shares of the Company (“market

conditions”), if applicable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 F Z & 5t Bl & = (&)

EBERA (&)

KRN H 25 (B

N HEREE 2R P ZRA - E R i
MEFEIEINER D - BRI RS &
HESETZHE (REHREESS
ERESGRBZBERH(EBERAMHD
MR)NFER - £RBEEHA  RNE
EREAERZARBEEZRZ 2
RERAX  RBREBHCEIHME D K&
AREEHRZK S HBE 2 Ik T B
Bz &EMER - EX - BEAERR
KPP ZHBRBAERR - T RERR B K
HEERZREAXES -

HNY RRRRE 2 RE T2 ERIE
A - EARTHISESEMIRER
B S 2 R AIBRSN - HRNZBEER
EME - REMAHEMERIRFS K
ERK - T BRI RTER - 98
WRASCERE -

Annual Report 2006 4F #i -

P107



- New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ot & B EF WA R AT - -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25FEZEtHBRME (&)

P108

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in

the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on
1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after
1 April 2005.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respect employees in the following year. No accrual
has been made as the amount was not significant to

the Group during the year.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. A provision
has not been recognised in respect of possible
payments, as it is not considered probable that the
situation will result in a material future outflow of

resources from the Group.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25FEE:tHERBE (&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F ESHHBEHE (8)

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

Retirement benefits are provided to the staff of group
companies operating in Hong Kong who are eligible to
participate in retirement benefits schemes under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
"ORSO"). The Group’s employees in Hong Kong enjoy
retirement benefits under either the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme or the Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted ORSO Scheme under which the
Group's employer voluntary contributions have to be
made. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to

the income statement as they become payable in
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accordance with the rules of the schemes. The assets EBEERIEZAANEEE 2 HHEA
ﬂ of both schemes are held separately from those of the REREIENTES B ERIKGS

Group in independently administered funds. When an (E&H 2 BN BEiSEEN 2 =R

employee leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund REBDRWHZ S mEPR N -

Exempted ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interests in

the Group’s employer’s contributions vesting fully, the

ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be

reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited

contributions.

Borrowing costs & F B AN

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the
income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised

as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to profit
or loss Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange

rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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31 March 2006 Z=ZEEANF=ZF=+—-H
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 25F EZE€:tH R E (&)

P112

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and,
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are included
in the exchange translation. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.

AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are

leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of

the other assets held by the Group.

The offices premises located in Hong Kong comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for
administrative purposes. As these portions could be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions

held to earn rentals separately as investment properties.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A
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31 March 2006

3.

—EEAF=A=+-H
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income
taxes in different jurisdictions depending on the routes
of the cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide,
if any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management’s judgement that
none of the jurisdictions is subject to income taxes by
the Group based on the existing routes of the cruise

ships and the operations of the relevant companies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed

below.

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties, cruise
ships and embedded derivative financial instruments
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar lease and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from fair market value by reference to
independent valuations. This conclusion is supported
by an independent professional appraiser who was
engaged by the Group during the year to perform a
valuation on the Group's investment properties, cruise
ships and embedded derivative financial instruments.
As at 31 March 2006, the fair value of investment
properties and cruise ships amounted to
HK$400,050,000 (2005: HK$345,250,000) and
HK$358,020,000 (2005: Nil), respectively, were
obtained by reference to quoted second hand market
price. As at 31 March 2006, the fair value of embedded
derivative financial instruments of HK$11,891,000 was

by reference to Binomial model.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

FEEFHAE R MG (&)

FHEr (48)
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31 March 2006
4.

—EEXAFZHA=+-H

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary

segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group's business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary

details of the business segments are as follows:

Continuing operations
(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages
in the provision of chartering and sub-chartering

of cruise ships;

(b) the hotel operations segment engages in the

operation of a hotel property in Indonesia;

(c) the property investments segment invests in prime

office space for its rental income potential; and

58 R
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. SEEH (@)
Discontinued operation ERIEREXER
(d) the internet services segment engages in the (d) BEEAERGHPVBEN LmESD
provision of property market research analysis and BRAETESWMRBEMERE -

professional valuation services through the internet.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, REBRTEME D ER  SIREFAT
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the TEHE D WFFTEB DB - MZEEFT
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to EHEI Y BEEMBDE -

the segments based on the location of the assets.

There were no inter segment sales and transfers during AEFAWESIEREHEE LEE (=

the year. (2005: Nil). TERF  FE) o
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. HEEN (&)
(a) Business segments (a) %08
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) TEREIWAEFBHE —ZTZT/NF
and certain asset, liability and expenditure K- EERAF=A=+—HIF
information for the Group's business segments EiREBsBEZWA - BH S
for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005. (BE)LAETEE  aE~AAX
Z AR -
Group
558
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
KELERE BRLEBEER
Cruise ship
charter services Hotel operations Property investments Sub-total Internet services Consolidated
BERERY BEEE NERE it ERARE &4
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
SREAE CTTRE CRRAE CTTRF CRRAE _TTRF CERAF _TRNF CBRAF CTRRF ERAF _FRIF
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tz TEr TEn TEr TEm TEn  TEx TExr  TEm TEr TR TEn
(Restated)
(831)
Segment revenue: ARUA
Income from RESMR
extemal customers EEZHA 204,718 223,137 15,880 18,621 16,935 13,865 237,533 255,623 958 6,440 238,491 262,063
Other income and gains ~ E fo i A R M - - 3,173 1,020 62 74 3,035 1,094 18 107 3,053 1,201
Total Bif 204,718 223,137 19,053 19,641 16,997 13,939 240,768 256,717 976 6,547 241,744 263264
Segment results PEEE 81,387 47,656 (13,877)  (14,805) 13,541 96,560 81,051 129,411 (399) 2,704 80,652 132,115
Interest income and HEHAR
unallocated revenue  RARMAR
and gains Wz 16,653 7947 18 07 16671 8,054
Fair value gains EDL
on embedded SHIEY
derivative financial LTEE
instruments s 112,468 - - - 112,468 -
Gain on disposal of HEBAL
a discontinued ESE 3
operation L& - - - - - - - - 3,587 - 3,587 -
Unallocated expenses KA EER (11,552)  (10,236) (883)  (5557)  (12435) (15793
Finance costs BEMA - - - - - - Q1) (285)) - n @19 (285
Share of profits and AEBELA
losses of associates BHRER 37212 20,438 - - - - 3m 20,438 15 2 31221 20,440
Profit before tax R AN 210,991 141,964
Tax fE

Profit for the year RERRH

1) (1675)

210244 125,209
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. HEER (8\)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) 5%\ (&)
Group
A58
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RESERE BRESERY
Cruise ship
charter services Hotel operations Property investments Sub-total Internet services Consolidated
BRHERE BERE nERE it DHERE &8

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Z$BAE _TTRE C¥BAE _TTRF ZBEAF _TTRF ZBRAF _TTNF ZBRAF _TTRF ZBRAF _3TIF
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr Tz TEx TRz TEx  fEx  TEx  fEm  TEr  TEm  TEX

(Restated)
(E30)
Segment assets AEEE 371,186 60,920 30,797 30,040 419966 368,649 821,949 459,609 - 1,063 821,949 460,672
Interests in associates ~ FiEBERFER - 151427 - - - - - 151427 - 59 - 151486
Unallocated assets FAREE 220,780 87821 - 178~ 220,780 87,999
Total assets BEE 1,042,729 700,157
Segment liabilities 38,862 43999 20,239 16,553 3,923 3434 63,024 63,986 - 135 63,024 64,121
Unallocated liabilities 362,574 318,625 - 1812 362574 320437
Total liabilities 48k 425598 384,558 Pl 1 9
Other segment Eft7E
information: EH
Depreciation and i)
amortisation BE 6,820 - 2,996 7408 840 1,113 10,656 8521 17 209 10,673 8,730
Unallocated amounts ~~ %7E£E 228 146
10,901 8,876
Impairment losses
recognised in the
income statement - - - 6,367 - 282 - 6,649 - - - 6,649
Change in fair value of
investment properties - - - - 15,320 91,497 15,320 91,497 - - 15,320 91,497
Revaluation deficit of
office premises - - - - 23 - 23 - - - 03 -
Fair value gain on equity &
investments at fair
value through profit or
loss/short term
investments 485 268
Capital expenditure Exyt 355,953 - 8,415 1,728 45 97,858 364,413 99,586 9 57 364422 99,643
Unallocated amounts ~ AAE4E 1,400 -

365,822 99,643
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. HEER (8&)
(b) Geographical segments (b) #&E 5 %8
The following tables present revenue and certain T2 AEBMBRE —TTNE
asset and expenditure information for the Group's R-_EEFF=A=+—H8 =
geographical segments for the years ended 31 EiRtES B WARETFTEE
March 2006 and 2005. BT ZEER -

Southeast Asia

except Hong Kong Hong Kong Consolidated
REE
(FEEEH) X ga
Group 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
rEH Z22RE  -TThF  ZBERE -TTnF ZBERE _TTIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAT TER TEL
(Restated)
(Z71)
ﬂ Segment revenue:  AEMA
Income from REIR
external EPZ
customers WA 220,598 241,758 17,893 20,305 238,491 262,063
Other income Bl AR
and gains biga 3,173 1,020 80 181 3,253 1,201
223,771 242,778 17,973 20,486 241,744 263,264
Attributable to a B&IE
discontinued Bexi
operation Eih - - (976) (6,547) (976) (6,547)
Revenue from BElKE
continuing EY)
operations e 223,771 242,778 16,997 13,939 240,768 256,717
Other segment EDHE
information: EH
Total segment assets  HBEEBE 503,441 274,616 539,288 425,541 1,042,729 700,157

Capital expenditure  AAF Y 364,368 1,728 54 97915 364,422 99,643
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. AN~ Hitdt N R UL &
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, mainly WA (TREREE 2 G¥ERR) F 2155
represents cruise ship charter service income, slot HHEERBWA - ATHEA - BIE
machine income, income from hotel operations, rental LEIRA - WA REBE B AR
income, service and subscription income from the HYEERANRBERGEREAEZR
provision of property information and professional BRBBIWA -

valuation services through the Internet.

An analysis of turnover, other income and gains is as gEzE s HMmiw A RIS Z o an
follows: N
Group
rEE
2006 2005
—EERE —ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Revenue A
Continuing operations: REBREX
Cruise ship charter service income HigHERBUA 193,394 223,137
Slot machine income AT A 11,324 -
Income from hotel operations B S 15,880 18,621 P121
Gross Rental income WA @z 16,935 13,865
237,533 255,623
Discontinued operation (note 6): Bk Hce s (fike) -
Service and subscription income BERTMBREMEERA
from the provision of R EEBERS
property information and professional 2 % &
valuation services through the Internet BIE A 958 6,440
238,491 262,063
Other income H At U A
Bank interest income FITRBEMA 2,672 208
Dividend income from listed investments FREZRBEWA 1,605 1,854
Others H it 3,235 1,094
7,512 3,156
Gains Iy 2
Gain on trading of equity investments EEZRBGERAY
at fair value through profit or loss/ BEDI&R . RiE
short term investments BRE /R E 2 W E 11,909 158
Fair value gain on equity investments BRBREATEABYE
at fair value through profit or loss/ CIRERE /REBRE
short term investments ZRNTEBERSE 485 268
Foreign exchange gains, net BN e 5 - 5,565
12,394 5,991

19,906 9,147
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 6. BRILEREER

FA - RZZZAFMANA @ B
AEBE-(UEZHIILZ—HESE
i AEBRENUARESFISHE T
2,000,000/ 7T HE E RN —EEE
WU EB 2B AT & E 2 23
RAER R BBRRER o B EH B
NAEl W= AE3,587,00048 7T - B

During the year, on 9 April 2005, pursuant to a sale
and purchase agreement entered into between the
Group and a third party, the Group agreed to dispose
of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary group, which
is engaged in the website research business, and the
related shareholder’s loan for a consideration of HK$8

and HK$2,000,000 respectively. The gain on disposal

of subsidiaries amounted to HK$3,587,000. The

transaction was completed on 31 May 2005.

The results of the website research business for the

ZPER-FEEFAA=+—A%

E\Z o

WMUEMEXEBAFEZREZ5MW

year are presented below: T
2006 2005
—EBRE —ZTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
P122 REVENUE W = 958 6,440
Cost of sales and services HE RIEME RS
provided Z AR (552) (3,710
Gross profit E7 406 2,730
Other income and gains Ho o U A R 2 18 107
Selling and distribution costs ~ #5# & % #4551 & - (1,229)
Administrative expenses THAX (823) (4,313)
Finance costs B & AR = (M
Share of profits and losses of 15 — K ¥ & 2 5 )& 7
an associate &8 15 2
Loss before tax from the BRI EER 2
discontinued operation BR BB B 1B (384) (2,704)
Tax Wi = -
Loss for the year from the BRIEREXRBZ
discontinued operation AFEEER (384) (2,704)
Gain on disposal from the HEBK LS
discontinued operation ¥ 2 W 3,587 -
3,203 (2,704)
Attributable to: AT AT -
Equity holders of the parent BRAREFEA 3,284 (2,367)
Minority interests DB R (81) (337)
3,203 (2,704)
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 6. BRI EER (&)
The net cash flows of discontinued operation are as DRIEEEEK RS REFHEM
follows: T
2006 2005
—EEN —ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET
Operating activities MEER (26) (267)
Investing activities REED (8) (57)
Financing activities BEEY = 5)
Net cash outflow Bent #E (34) (329)
Earnings/(losses) per share: SR AT/ (FE) :
Basic, from the EAR REEKLE
discontinued operation REET HK0.34 cent 1l  HK(0.28) cent /&1l P123
Diluted, from the BE xBEgRL
discontinued operation R HK0.29 cent &l  HK(0.28) cent /& {L*
*  Because the convertible bonds and share options had * HRABMERESFMBIRESEE
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic losses per share for TEERF=ZA=FT—BLFEZE
year ended 31 March 2005, the effect of dilution from BMEABEAFREBETYZ - Bt
convertible bonds and share options were ignored. I 5 R AT AR 5 N B AR A 2

=
SR -
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 6. BHIEEEETF(E)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(losses) ERIEEEXEB o BRERNRE SR
per share from the discontinued operation are based M, (EER) VIRBAT ZHEFE -
on:
2006 2005
ZBEAE —TThE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt &t T FET
(Restated)
(Z51)
Net profit/(loss) attributable & 2% &) & i f% f% 4
to ordinary equity holders HAEABGERILL
of the parent from the REXBZHF/
discontinued operation (E518) % 3,284 (2,367)
Weighted average number FEERER
P124 of ?rdinary shares in i‘ssue A E%@ﬁﬁ/z_
- during the year used in REFZB BT
the basic earnings per share & i % fn#E
calculation FHEH 960,269,975 838,769,101
Weighted average number AEGREE
of ordinary shares used BNRERZ
in the diluted earnings R AR 04

per share calculation FHEY 1,142,990,899 966,128,322
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. B ® A iE F
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ NREB BB NS FB 7 (5
(crediting): A)
2006 2005
ZBEAE —ZETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ff TER FExT
(Restated)
(E7))
Depreciation neE 15 10,051 7,948
Auditors’ remuneration % BB & 1,400 1,200
Employee benefits expense EERAAX
(including directors’ (BERFIZ
remuneration in note 9, EExH e
but excluding benefits BrEE
in kind): EMFIR)
Wages and salaries TENFHD 17,727 16,504
Equity-settled share option AR &S
expense B IR X 7,058 -
P125
Pension scheme RKEEHE
contributions e 548 586
Less: Forfeited BRI
contributions* R - -
Net pension scheme BIREE 2
contributions HHER 548 586
Total staff costs BTHAERE 25,333 17,090
Minimum lease payments T REFRE
under operating leases on MEZEHRSE
land and buildings M 214 932
Loss on disposal/write-offs of & /s % -
items of property, plant BB k& EER
and equipment BiE 349 2,354
Gross rental income HelwABgE 5 (16,935) (13,865)
Less: Direct operating W BEEE
expenses 53 1,622 1,542

Net rental income MeW A% (15,313) (12,323)
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31 March 2006
7.

P126

ZEEXFZA=Z+-H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. REEFHHED ()
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZBRBAERN S MR (5
(crediting): A)
2006 2005
ZBEAE —TThE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt it TERT FET
(Restated)
(E71)
Other operating (income) less  E b4 & (W A) Ik
expenses: X :
Deficit on revaluation of BfhEE
office premises in WMREME
Hong Kong 2 A 15 223 -
Impairment of items of mE - HE Rk
property, plant RBEE
and equipment HE 15 - 6,367
Impairment of properties HIEEEME
held for resale R - 282
Gain on disposal of HEWBRFZ
subsidiaries g - (4,150)
Others H i - (20)
223 2,479

* At 31 March 2006, the Group had no forfeited

contributions available to reduce its contributions to

the pension schemes in future years (2005: Nil).

* RZFEAFZA=t R A%
0 1 258 8 T R R R
FEZAKGHERK(ZBTH

FoE)
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MMEMAE
Group
rE
2006 2005
—ETRF —ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Interest on bank loans wholly BRI TEH2HEEY
repayable: RITEFME -
— within five years by —HFEADH
instalments BE 1,530 743
— after five years by - hFEESH
instalments g 3,232 1,333
Interest on convertible bonds AL EFHF| B 22,327 632
Interest on securities margin -~ EFRESEE
facilities P} 90 143
o P127
Interest on finance leases REMEEFE = 1 —_—
27,179 2,852
Attributable to a discontinued T 4% |- 48 4 2 7 JE (5
operation (note 6) (FFsxe) - 1
Attributable to continuing Rz e sk
operations reported in HEZRE
the consolidated income REE
statement FEfh 27,179 2,851
27,179 2,852
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9. EE R AN G HFEEMS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of

(a) EEM &
RIE £ AR B N BB R EHRDI S
161RFIBEBRZAFEEEHS

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as mr
follows:
Group
EH
2006 2005
—EERE —Z2ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Fees we 300 240
Other emoluments: Hinif € -
Salaries, allowances and e EER
benefits in kind BEWA = 6,660 4577
Bonuses bOFAl 948 501
Employee share option benefits & B A=A 6,042 -
Pension scheme contributions RINEFTEIME R 353 213
14,003 5,291
14,303 5,531

During the year, certain directors were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been charged to the
income statement, was determined as at the date
of the grant and included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

FAR - REARRZERES - &
TEERRFRANEE IR R ER
BRE BEIE—THFBIARTH
HwAME29 - E XMz RN 2 7%
EFHEREZATFEEDRERL BHE
EoYFFAEXABRBEZEEME
A o
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31 March 2006 Z=—ZFEANE=ZF=+—H
9. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9 EFRIfNGSHEEME

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (R
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) E=M < (&)
(i) Independent Non-executive Directors () BWUFRTESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive REAN TELIFRITE
directors during the year were as follows: FZHWEBWT
2006 2005
—ETREF —TFRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT
Mr. Ho Yau Ming MRAxE 100 80
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BR & 100 80
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BERLE 100 80
300 240
_ P129
There were no other emoluments payable to REENWEENBIIENITE = ——
the independent non-executive directors EZEMEMME (ZFTEET R

during the year (2005: Nil). F | o
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31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
9. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9. EE R TN RS HEEMSE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#8)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) ESM = (&)
(i) Executive Directors (i) ITEF
Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
#¢-2H ks BHhe
we REWAEG L BRERA sESR HesE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TERL TER TR TR

2006 ZEERE
Executive directors: BiTES:
Mr. Wilson Ng EERAE - 1,140 150 960 65 2315
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BEE A - 990 150 960 57 2,157
Mr. Ng Wee Keat ERGERE - 1,119 135 863 56 2,173
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda ERE M - 615 90 863 35 1,603
Ms. Lillian Ng EXE)E - 615 83 575 35 1308
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles LHBEE - 900 120 671 33 1724
Ms. Chen Ka Chee R 8 - 420 60 575 21 1,076
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE - 861 160 575 51 1,647
- 6,660 948 6,042 353 14,003
2005 g i
Executive directors: BOEE:
Mr. Wilson Ng ERERE - 1175 120 - 54 1349
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BHRA - 360 45 - 20 425
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEGRE - 1,021 90 - 41 1,152
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda ERRME - 300 38 - 16 354
Ms. Lillian Ng ERE N - 420 53 - 24 497
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BHERE - 800 90 - 3] 921
Ms. Chen Ka Chee RIESME - 220 30 - 1 261
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXRE - 281 35 - 16 332
- 4,577 501 - 213 5,291
There was no arrangement under which a AEEANNTEESFIEHHNE
director waived or agreed to waive any MeXREREME 2%

remuneration during the year. BE o



................................................... Annual Report 2006 % # -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R 3= Mt 5F

31 March 2006 Z=—ZFEANE=ZF=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 9.  EERINESHEEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#8)

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments (b) EluBSHFEEMSE

The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2005: five) executive directors,
details of whose remuneration are disclosed in
(a) above. In the prior year, one of the five highest
paid directors was appointed by the Company in
October 2004. His emoluments from the date of
his appointment as a director up to 31 March
2005 were included as director's remuneration in
the prior year and, prior to that date, as employee
costs. The remuneration payable to him as an
employee of the Group in the prior year amounted
to HK$231,000, of which HK$215,000 represented
salaries and allowances and HK$16,000

represented pension scheme contributions.

FRNAUERFEEBRBERM
—ETRF A MITES -
EHMe2#BER EXQ)BE
B AF AfUBEHESHP
— R ZEZENE+ AEEART
ZE - HEEZERESFZHE
HE—_ZTRF-_A=-+—HL
ZMEHAEEZESHHE RN -
mBEZBEARBEKARN - X
FRNBIERTEEEE ZME
& ¥ 231,000%8 ;v © H
215,000/8 7T 7 ¥ & KOFERL -
16,0008 T RRK BT EIHFK -
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

10. TAX 10. B IH

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made BE-—EEAHA-—A-—+—AIE
for the year ended 31 March 2006 as the Group did BT A 2 £ 0 4 A R R S AT
not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong. In FE SRR R B L 0 4 R A S R
the prior year, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided VEW M o 4E - BB FIERL TR
at the rate of 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits i OIE B R A (SRR
arising in Hong Kong during that year. No overseas F15217.5% 2 Fi R B AE o (AR AR
profits tax has been provided as no assessable income EEAEE L AME R > R R A
was earned from the Group’s operations outside Hong (A RERRE UL A - H ok A 3R HNFFia

Kong during the year. T 1 B4 o
2006 2005
—EBRE —_ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTERT
(Restated)
(&)

P132 Group: REHE -
- Current — Hong Kong rEE-FE

Charge for the year RERRIE = 271
Overprovision in prior yeas BEFEHRERE 3) -
Deferred (note 27) BB (ME27) 750 16,484

Total tax charge for the year FAMBRLEHE 747 16,755
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31 March 2006 —ZEEXNF=ZF=1—H

10. B IH (&)

AR AT R HKEB 5 M B~ 7 M

B X 2 VA TE B Rt B 2 BR T B a A

RzBHAXHERERERREGFE 2R

EX H 2 E R - ARGE R A X (BDA
ERER) BEERER Z2HEROT

10. TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,

the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:
Group - 2006
AEE-—STAE
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
E# Hihih & Gl
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FTET % FTET % AT %
Profit before tax (including ~ B aTEF (B1E
ain/loss from a BRIMELER
i | o P133
discontinued operation) W%/ ER) 105,797 105,194 210,991 -
Tax at the statutory tax rate  ZEAEH L E2FIE 18,514 175 22,426 213 40,940 19.4
Income not subject to tax ~ HBEREH WA (3,576) (3.4)  (23,814) (22.6)  (27,390) (13.0)
Expenses not deductible Eak:
for tax F % 6,156 5.8 - - 6,156 2.9
Tax losses utilised from EIE S il
previous periods MEER (20,347) (19.2) - - (20,347) (9.6)
Overprovision in prior years B 1E & & B & (3) - - - ) -
Unrecognised deferred ABRELERE
tax assets BE 3 - 1,388 1.3 1,391 0.7
Tax charge at the Group's ~ BASEEBRH X
effective rate FHEZHERX 747 0.7 - - 747 0.4
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

10. TAX (continued) 10. Ht IH (4#)
Group - 2005
AEE--22I0F
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
i Higih B G
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TET % AL % AL %
Profit before tax BR B0 AT& 7l
(including loss from (BREERLEE
a discontinued operation)  E#ZEE) 85,360 56,604 141,964
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT MEGFEZHE 14,938 17.5 12,736 225 27674 19.5
Revaluation surplus not BERM
subject to tax Eff AR (323) (0.4) - - (323) (0.2)
Income not subject to tax ~ HBZEHUA (1,052) (1.2)  (14,151) (25.0)  (15,203) (10.7)
P134 Expenses not deductible AR
_— for tax f % 1,845 2.1 - - 1,845 13
Tax losses utilised from PRNEHREZ
previous periods WEER (95) (0.1 - - (95) 0.1
Unrecognised deferred AERET
tax assets REEE 1,442 1.7 1,415 25 2,857 20
Tax charge at the Group's ~ BASEEBRH X
effective rate FHEZRERX 16,755 19.6 - - 16755 1.8

11. PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 11.BRARRBREZSEEAELBEEZE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE it F

PARENT

The profit from ordinary activities attributable to equity EStARRFMBFRE2BE_ZTE
holders of the parent for the year ended 31 March NE=ZARA=+—BLEFELFAQT
2006 dealt with in the financial statements of the BEEREABRBLMEBEESRN R
Company was HK$147,513,000 (2005: HK$ 1,559,000 147,513,000 T (— T FH F
(restated)) (note 30(b)). 1,559,000 7t (& %)) (M &%

30(b)) °



12.

13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

12.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A
Bz 2

2006 2005
ZEEBRE “TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTERT
Interim paid — HK1.5 cents B ERE
(2005: HK1.2 cents) —BREBA.SEM
per ordinary share (ZZEZRF - 1.280) 16,788 10,044
Proposed final — HK2.0 cents BRERERKRE
(2005: HK1.8 cents) —BREBAR2.0%
per ordinary share (ZZZRF - 1.8%11) 22,483 15,335
39,271 25,379

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the net profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, adjusted to reflect
the interest on the convertible bonds, where applicable
(see below). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares during the year, as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary

shares.

13.

FARBBARPRBAGFTARRRBRER
FEEBRRBFERS EHER T AIE

=
=g o

BAREERBRESE ARG
BRAET
SREARBF T IRRE R A LB
A ABEAFEENRAFED
BATE B METHBETE -

BRESTE N YIRS AR E @A
ER/AEARGAFE RN FE(BL
A B DA I RS BT 4R BB 75 2 #E a (FA
BA) (F2HTX - fFEESKRAER
2 B 8 R 2 AN R AR S 1
B UARBERBERAAEETEL Y
AR R RITERE RS T BREZ
TRAE BT ZEBBRNE TG

s
= o
>t
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. B S L @R EESAREN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT SBRER (E)

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

amounts are based on:

st

BRERNNEERN VLA T R IE

ﬁ B
2006 2005
—EBARE —TTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
(Restated)
(Z51)
Earnings B
Profit from ordinary activities attributable SFEERERE R
to ordinary equity holders of the parent, FERZEAREAR
used in the basic eamings per share RERFEARERS
calculation E3i gl
From continuing operations REFBEEER 199,054 134,990
From discontinued operation REERIEEER 3,284 (2,367)
P136 202,338 132,623
 — Interest on convertible bonds (note 8) AR ESF S
(Ff7E8) 22,327 632
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BR A48 AR & 2 KIS AT
holders of the parent before interest ISENCIESEEY
on convertible bonds A ARG F 224,665 133,255
Attributable to: AT &IEREL
Continuing operations BEREER 221,381 135,622
Discontinued operation BRI REEK 3,284 (2,367)
224,665 133,255
Shares & 7
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &t & & i E A 2 F 5
in issue during the year used in basic ERZEFRABEET
earnings per share calculation L AR AN 19 # 960,269,975 838,769,101
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEYE-LTAakZ
number of ordinary shares: INHE T 8L
Share options B 15,228,887 23,948,207
Convertible bonds B] 2 8 5 167,492,037 103,411,014
1,142,990,899 966,128,322
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The amounts of the goodwill and negative goodwill

recognised in the balance sheet, arising from the

acquisition of subsidiaries, are as follows:

14 &

31 March 2006

ZEEXFZAZ+-H

FHWEHB AR mMEEERBERARE
RZEEBENRBEEZREDT ¢

Negative
goodwill Goodwill Total
EBE G &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FTHT
31 March 2006 —2ERF=ZA=1t—H
At 1 April 2005: RZZTETHFEMA—H
Cost as previously reported BXAR (0 AT 2 %) (2,077) 156,447 154,370
Effect of adopting RimE BT mE £
HKFRS 3 FIRITE
o P137
(note 2.2 (d)) (Bf#t2.2(d)) 2,077 (156,447) (154,370) —
Cost as restated B (E3) - - -
Accumulated amortisation ZiaHE
and impairment as KRB
previously reported (anaT 2 8) 2,077 (156,447) (154,370)
Effect of adopting RimE BT mE £
HKFRS 3 FIRFE
(note 2.2 (d)) (Bfst2.2(d)) (2,077) 156,447 154,370
Accumulated amortisation ZiRHEHER
and impairment 1A
as restated =] - - -
Net carrying amount RHFE - - -
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. 7 & (4)
Negative
goodwill Goodwill Total
EHE BE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET
31 March 2005 —EZHEF=A=+—H
At 1 April 2004 and RZZEZTMNFWA—-BR
31 March 2005: “ERRF=A=+—8:
Cost B AR (2,077) 156,447 154,370
Accumulated amortisation St 3
and impairment KB 2,077 (156,447) (154,370)
Net carrying amount RHFE - - -
P138 There was no movement in goodwill during the years BE_ZZERF=ZA=+—HBKZE
S ended 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005. THF=A=T—HILHFE  HEX
maAMEE -
In the prior years, goodwill not previously eliminated RBEFE - AEITEEZRS FEEHIE
against the consolidated reserves was amortised on HEBDNAEMGAAERFH=F
the straight-line basis over its estimate useful life of BFENREREEEE -

three to five years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2006

15. 5% ~ BB R

ZEEXFZAZ+-H

Group
rE
Long Medium
term term
leasehold ~ leasehold Furniture,
hotel office fixtures
propertiesin  premisesin  Leasehold  Plant and and Motor Crusie
Indonesia ~ Hong Kong improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles ships Total
il Bk B
RERE  EEE  HENR BER RER
BENZ  BAEHNR k8 - #f hat Ba At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn T Tian T TiEn TR TiEn
31 March 2006 “2EAFZAZt-A
At 31 March 2005 and Eé:%%ﬂzﬂ =t-8
at 1 Apiil 2005: “TEREMA-R:
Cost or valuation (restated) WM A (&) 26,190 4,839 21,905 836 18,326 5,484 - 71,580
Accumulated depreciation ZRMERAE
and impairment (restated) (23) (8,081) - (21,543) (836)  (14974) (4199) - (49,633)
Net carrying amount FHEE 18,109 4,839 362 - 3,352 1,285 - 27947
At 1 April 2005, net of KZETIEMA-R-
accumulated depreciation NKEZRFERAE
and impairment (restated) (23)) 18,109 4,839 362 - 3,352 1,285 - 27947
Additions HE - - 7549 - 643 1,677 - 9,869
Disposal HE - - - - (31) (364) - (741)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHELR
(note 31) (Fiz31) - - - - - - 355,953 355,953
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEBLR
(note 32) (fi332) - - 7 - (89) - - (96)
Suplus/(deficit) on revaluation  Ef B %/ (B4 - (223) - - - - 8,887 8,664
Depreciation provided REERE
during the year BE (1,695) (86) (229) - (949) () (6820)  (10,051)
Exchange realignment EAER (2,268) - - - 297) (25) - (2,590)
At 31 March 2006, net of ’n/\ﬁ_ﬂ_ﬂ'—ﬁ '
accumulated depreciation NBEEAER
and impairment e 14,146 4,530 7,675 - 2,283 2,301 358,020 388,955
At 31 March 2006: RZEERE-A=1-8
Cost or veluation RAG[EE 22,808 4,530 8,461 836 15,220 5857 358020 415732
Accumulated depreciation 2RAER
and impairment e (8,662) - (786) (836)  (12,937) (3,556) - (26,777)
Net carrying amount RESE 14,146 4,530 7,675 - 2,283 2,301 358,020 388,955
Analysis of cost or valuation: A EEAN :
At cost BHE 22,808 - 8,461 836 15,220 5,857 - 53,182
At 31 March 2006 B2/ EZAZ1-A
valuation i - 4,530 - - - - 358020 362,550
22,808 4530 8,461 836 15,220 5,857 358,020 415,732
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31 March 2006

ZEEXFZA=Z+-H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 9% ~ BB REE (&)

(continued)
Group
ey S
Long Medium
term term
leasehold leasehold Furniture,
hotel office fixtures
properties in - premises in Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Indonesia ~ Hong Kong  improvements machinery ~ equipment vehicles Total
0 BB &l -
REEE HHEE BENZ BER %ER
BENE  BAENE B 1 R RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TiET ThL TEx ThL TEL TET
(Restated)
(E51)
31 March 2005 “ETRE-fR=1-H
At 1 April 2004: R-ZTOEMA-H:
Cost or valuation (restated) A A s[4 1E (E1) 26,190 4,941 2773 836 17,143 5,802 78,685
Accumulated depreciation  ZEAERKE
and impairment (restated) (E51) (6218) - (12,252) (836) (13,305) (3,140) (35,751)
Net carrying amount BEFE 19,972 4941 11,521 - 3,838 2,662 42,934
At 1 April 2004, net of R-ZEMEMA-H -
accumulated depreciation Ak REHERAE
and impairment (restated) (851) 19,972 4,941 11,521 - 3,838 2,662 4,934
Additions HE - - 437 - 1,348 - 1,785
Disposals e - - (2,305) - (49) - (2,354)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA
(note 32) (H#32) - - - - - (223) (223)
Surplus on revaluation EftR% - 120 - - - - 120
Impairment A - - (5,867) - (306) (194) (6,367)
Depreciation provided during  AFE &
the year BB (1,863) (222) (3,424) - (1479) (960) (7.948)
At 31 March 2005, net of RZZERE=A
accumulated depreciation =+-8 nk2E
and impairment RERAE 18,109 4,839 362 - 3,352 1,285 27,947
At 31 March 2005: R-BERF=A=1-0:
Cost or valuation: HASMEE 26,190 4,839 21,905 836 18,326 5484 77,580
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHER
and impairment HE (8,081) - (21,543) (836) (14,974) (4,199) (49,633)
Net carrying amount RETE 18,109 4,839 362 - 3,352 1285 27947
Analysis of cost or valuation: KRS EERT -
At cost B 26,190 - 21,905 836 18,326 5,484 72,741
At 31 March 2005 B-FTREZA
valuation Zt-BiEfE - 4,839 - - - - 4,839
26,190 4839 21,905 836 18,326 5,484 77,580




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Group (continued)

The Group's leasehold office premises in Hong Kong
were revalued on 31 March 2006 by Knight Frank
Hong Kong Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use basis.
A revaluation deficit of HK$223,000 (2005: Nil) (note
7) resulting from the valuation has been charged to

the income statement.

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March
2006 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. A revaluation surplus
of HK$8,887,000 (note 30(a)) resulting from the
valuation has been credited to the cruise ship

revaluation reserve.

Had these leasehold office premises and cruise ships
been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$4,207,000 (2005: HK$4,308,000)
and US$42,813,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$333,941,000) (2005: Nil), respectively.

At 31 March 2006, certain of the Group's cruise ships
and leasehold office premises in Hong Kong with
carrying values of HK$222,300,000 (2005: Nil) and
HK$4,530,000 (2005: HK$4,839,000), respectively,
were pledged to secure loans granted to the Group
(note 24 and 35).

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

15. 9% ~ BB REHE (|

rEEH (&)
AREEFSHERAEZYWER =
Fﬁ:ﬂ:‘F—ElEiﬂ?%LLii?%éﬁT%
HEMHEY (F8) ARAAREBERA
RB\ARMEETEM - HEESE
2 EHEA223,0008 L (Z T A
Fm)(WE7DERKERF
|§/é_§ °

AEBBHNR -_TTNF=A=+—
BHEBIEXSERGEMBISTE
ENHEBAERARBEBIEAERAEN

AATMEETERN - HEELEZEM
£ 48,887,000/ 7T (Mi5£30(a)) 2 &F
ABIRE G FEE -

WMZEHERLNEYWERBRIREL
AR ZBEIFEYER - MRS ZRE
BEDRIX &4,207,0008 L (ZFE
FHF : 4,308,000/ L) & 42,813,000
E 70 (9 E 1 333,941,000%8 70)
(ZZETRF + 8)

RZZEERF=ZA=+—H A&H
BRMEE D B A222,300,000%8 7T (=
TERF - ) &4,530,000%8 T (=
ZTERF 1 4,839,000/870) 2 & T H
WRBEABHERANEYMEDIEERR -
ERAREEEME R ZER (24
}35)
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % ~ BB K& #H (&
(continued)
Company NN
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B £EREE
HK$'000
FET
31 March 2006 —EEAE=ZA=+—H
At 1 April 2005, net of accumulated N_ZEZERFMWMA—H -
depreciation MBREENE 543
Additions NE 27
Depreciation provided during the year REFFERE (150)
At 31 March 2006, net of RZEERNF=A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation Mk R2EIHE 420
At 31 March 2006: R-ZZETERF=ZA=1+—8:
Cost [DRIN 2,898
P142 Accumulated depreciation ZENE (2,478)
Net carrying amount BREFE 420
31 March 2005 —EERF=ZA=+—H
At 1 April 2004 RZZEZTMEMA—A
Cost (DN 2,866
Accumulated depreciation 2B E (2,307)
559
At 1 April 2004, net of accumulated RZZEZTMEMOMA—AR -
depreciation HEKERBINE 559
Additions NE 128
Depreciation provided during the year REZFERE (144)
At 31 March 2005, net of R-ZEERF=A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation MBEREWE 543
At 31 March 2005 and RZZETRAF=A=+—HBR
1 April 2005: —ZEThENA—R:
Cost XA 2,903
Accumulated depreciation 2R E (2,360)
Net carrying amount BREFME 543




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. L E W *

Group

r5
2006 2005
—E2ERE —TFTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
At beginning of year F 1) 345,250 155,895
Additions = 39,480 97,858

Net profit from a fair value NTEEHEL

adjustment il DEE 15,320 91,497
At end of year FR 400,050 345,250

The Group's investment properties are situated in Hong

Kong and are held under medium leases.

The Group's investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2006 by Knight Frank Hong Kong Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at an
aggregate balance of HK$400,050,000 on an open

market basis, based on their existing use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 36(a) to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$371,850,000 (2005:
HK$321,350,000) at 31 March 2006 have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group as further detailed in notes 24 and 35.

Further details of the Group's principal investment

properties are included on page 197 to 199.

AREBZIREVMEMLNESE © AT H
HEREH -

AEBZREVEHRBIEESER
HEMHES (BB ARIABIRN_E
TRFZA=Z+—BAZAMAMERE
RERBREMHE&E 8B R E& X%
400,050,000/ It °

BELCEHE  BREMEDHETE=
7o BEZE—LHBIHNPBEERE
MizE36(a) °

AEER_ZETNF=ZA=1+—H8Z
R4 E371,850,0008 L (=& F
HF : 321,350,000/ 0) 2 & T &
BEMEECIERRT LIRS AEEER
ZIRITEE  FEBERMFE24K%35 -

AEBTEREMEZEMFBIHN
F£197H 251998 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

17. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 17 F& 1+ &
Group
rEE
2006 2005
ZEBARE —_TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
(Restated)
(E3))
Carrying amount at 1 April RIUA—BZEREE
As previously reported LU - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 RmEBGHERE TR
(note 2.2(a)) 2 %2 (ffit2.2(a)) 20,480 21,408
As restated E] 20,480 21,408
Recognised during the year RAFEHER (850) (928)
P144 e S
S Exchange realignment ER R (822) -
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HZKHE 18,808 20,480
Current portion mENE (850) (927)
Non-current portion FERBEH 17,958 19,553
Including above was certain leasehold land with a X BEEREE 13,785,000 7T (=
carrying value of HK$13,785,000 (2005: TTHF ¢ 14,116,000 7T) B IEH
HK$14,116,000) which is held under a medium term HEERAITURESZETHEL
lease and is situated in Hong Kong and leasehold land b DA ARE(ES5,023,000%8 7T (ZF
with a carrying value of HK$5,023,000 (2005: TR : 6,364,000/ 7T) IRIE K HAME
HK$6,364,000) which is held under a long term lease ERFBUMNREEZHE i o KE
and is situated in Indonesia. The Group's prepaid land BER_—_ZEERNF=HA=T—"HKEE
premiums with a carrying value of HK$13,785,000 13,785,000 Tt (ZEZF H
(2005: HK$14,116,000) at 31 March 2006 have been 14,116,000/ 7T) 2 FAT# B 2 1F 1K
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the o UESASEER ZIRITEE -

Group as further detailed in notes 24 and 35. I RMIEE24%35
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B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

18. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT 8. EEREthiy%
Group
iy |
2006 2005
—E2ERE —TFTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
At cost R ME 41,000 41,000
Provision for impairment HWE R (41,000) (41,000)
At end of year T = -

In prior years, the Group acquired the entire issued
shares of a company which has paid a deposit of
Malaysian “Ringgit” (“RM") 20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$41,000,000) to acquire a property
situated in Malaysia. The amount of the deposit paid
was accounted for as the cost of the property under
development, which is stated at cost less any provision
for impairment. In prior years, an impairment provision
against the carrying value of the property under
development of HK$41,000,000, was provided by the
directors of the Company in the light of the then market

conditions.

Since the prior year, the Group has claimed the
developer of this property for the refund of the deposit
of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$41,000,000) through legal proceedings in Malaysia.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in July 2006,
the claim was dismissed by the court. As the directors
are considering to file an appeal to the Court, the

litigation is still in process.

Further details of the Group's property under

development are included on page 200.

RBEFE  AEBRE—RQFZ
2HWEETRMD  ZAREX MRS
20,000,000% ® (& B & R
41,000,000 7T) * LAY EE — I8 5 2K
EaWE - EX2iEe AKRY A%
R 2 KA - IR AR BR 1]
REREY R - RBEFE - A7
EEREERTARERIWEZR
TH B $2 %5 41,000,000 JT 2 & (& %
=

BXEAFE  AEEEEBANHRAE
REZREFRMAZVNECEREGER
20,000,0005 ® (©W #H & R
41,000,000 70) ZIRBERNK - &5
A RZZTTRFLA - A B
FARE AR EZFEZRRARE
B ESF - WEBFRINEETH -

BEASEERIPYWEZE—FFB
HMNE2008 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. FF 165 Bt JB 4 ] #E 3%
Company
b NN

2006 2005

—EERFE —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRG - ERAE 1 1
Due from subsidiaries A IENEIE S 790,248 929,749
Due to subsidiaries B BTB A RIFIA - (88,281)
790,249 841,469
Provision for impairment WE R (382,774) (530,042)
407,475 311,427

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- Hf B AR &I ERT - 28 %
free and are not repayable within one year. The carrying BEAR—FARNEE ZSERKHMEAL

amounts of these amounts due from subsidiaries FIRIEZEmMEREAE QN FEEMES -

approximate to their fair values.
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A
19. Fr L Bt T8 2 B #E #=5 (#8)
TEWMBARFEBOT :

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage
Nominal of effective
Place of value of interest

incorporation issued attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Group activities

& i B 3T B#1T AEEELR
£8 REEHE RAZEE EREZEEIL TEXRK

2006 2005
—BREAF —TTIF
New Century Maritime British Virgin Islands US$10,000 60 45%* Investment
Limited (“NCML") ("BVI") 10,000% 7T holding
RBRUES REEK
((RBREZES])
y o P147
Jackston Maritime BVI US$10,000 60 45%% Cruise ship _—

Limited (“IML") RBERHES 10,000% T investment
BHRKE
Queenston Maritime BVI US$10,000 60 45% Cruise ship
Limited ("QML") EEEAHE 10,000% T investment
BHRE
Gaintech Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Limited BE 2T investments
MEREERAF NERE
Jet Top Development Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Limited B 2B investments
VEERAERAA NERE
Jet Victory Development Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Limited BE 2B investments

VRERERAF

NERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R &R M EE
31 March 2006 —ZEXF=ZF=1+—-H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. F L Bt B 2 B #E #=5 (/&)

Percentage
Nominal of effective
Place of value of interest

incorporation issued attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Group activities

i B 32 BEfT AEEELS
L REEHE RAzEE EREZERIL TEXK

2006 2005
Z2FAE _TTLF
New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Investments Limited BB 2R investments
MELMEREERAT NERE
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
BHREBERRAA BB 28T investments
NERE
P148 Wealth International Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Development Limited BB 2R T investments
SHERERERRA NERE
Wise Century Investments Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Property
Limited BB AT investments
ENREARLA NERE
P. T. Horizon Bandar Indonesia US$2,200,000 50 50 Hotel operations
Bahru** =)}z 2,200,000% 7T BIE X%
Capplus Investments BVI/ UsS$i 100 100 Securities
Limited Hong Kong En trading
EBRELES/ EFEE
Bk

Balance Profits BVI/ US$1 100 100 Provision of
Limited Singapore [E cruise ship
EBEREE/ charter services
% REEH

HER®
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst

& Young International member firms.

**  During the year, the Group acquired an additional 15%
equity interest in NCML, together with its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, QML and JML, from New Century Cruise
Line International Limited (“NCCL"), a related company
in which Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company, has
beneficial interest. The acquisition has not resulted in
any goodwill. Further details of the acquisition have been
stated in note 31 to the financial statements and the

Company'’s circular dated 28 November 2005.

*  This subsidiary is classified as a subsidiary because the

Group has the control over its board of directors.

Except for Balance Profits Limited and Capplus
Investments Limited, all of the above principal

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

During the year, pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement entered into between the Group and a third
party, the Group agreed to dispose of its entire equity
interest and shareholder’s loan in a subsidiary group,
which is engaged in the website research business for
an aggregate consideration of HK$2,000,008. This
disposal resulted in a gain on disposal of HK$3,587,000

(see notes 6 and 32 to the financial statements).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

19. Fir {4 B /B 2 B # 2= ()

* BRABUWIABTELKEMESLSA
sk Ernst & Young International 2 {Z{f]
HEMEBmEZ -

OOFER - KK BB ERXF New
Century Cruise Line International
Limited ([NCCL]) Y2 NCMLiE [/ K
2 & WE R FQMLEIMLZ FEIN15%
AR MARAZEERR
New Century Investment Pacific
Limited 2 & #2 #2 ix 22 ®lHuang Group
(BVI) Limited’ANCCL# B & #= #
meo WBFEYEELEMNEHE -
FRENEFERZE-THBENE
BHREMITIIRARTINR_ZER
F+—AZ+N\B2z2@K

¢ ERAEEHZMEBARCESS
G SIE - B %A A5 e
BAE -

B Balance Profits Limited & Capplus
Investments Limited4) » LA EFTA £
ENBAFRIIBEAAREERE -

FRN - RBAEEBE—(IF=FFT7
Z—HEEHZE AEBEREHEHR
RS R E (B R %)
ZEMBRAERERRRER - BRE
732,000,008 7T It HERIHESE
& Uk 253,587,000% 7T (B2 BB IS
WERMTE6K32) °

ERFANTDEERBRABAEEARNFE
FEBABEARRFESIMAKREFEEE
EE*IZ PZARBIMBERTF - EER

SR E AR ZFERIE
@iﬂﬁ’\ﬁﬁ °
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. FR 5B & N R HE =
Group
rEE
2006 2005
ZEBERE —TThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Share of net assets EIHEESFR - 3,166
Balance due from an associate JE Wy — KB & N R ZUA - 148,320
- 151,486
In the prior year, as at 31 March 2005, interest in EF RZEERAF=A=+—8"
associates mainly represented 45% equity interest in PrAb Bt & N A a5 £ ZHEFONCMLL
NCML and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. During the HE2 BB AR Z45%KA#ERD o R
year, the Group acquired further 15% equity interest AREERN - AEEE—FRENCML
P150 in NCML which was then became a 60%-owned Z15%E ANz - NCMLE &K & A
S subsidiary of the Group. Please refer to note 19 for EEHEE0NER B RFR - 518
details. FE2RHMET19 -
The balance with an associate was unsecured, interest- JFE U — KBt i

Bl Z A S EEE

/N
% B N B E R e

free and had no fixed terms of repayment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS

Trading terms with customers are mostly on credit.
Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance, except for certain well-established customers,
where the terms are extended to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest

bearing.

Below is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
provisions, based on the invoice date, which is the

date when the services are rendered.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, OTHER 21.JEWEB SR - Bt = 1E

HitBWERARES

HERMZESHRRKRED AEER
NET - FRBEFANEHIEI0R
NEE - BETERILREBEZE
AN ERHRIEREQR - B —
BEEZAEELR - KAEBIENKRY
BH 7 FEWBR I LABR RE#E ) - W RR
MAEEEFIEASEERRBE - &
EERABECHESBY A -
EWE ZHERIITETR -

T REWESRRNGEREER - R
BEREAH GIREERSE 2BH) 28k

BT o

Group

rEHE
2006 2005
ZEBRE —ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Within 1 month (Current) —{E A M (BNER) 13,842 775
1 to 2 months —ZMEA 376 156
2 to 3 months WZE= @A 46 81
Over 3 months HBm=MEA 70 320
14,334 1,332
Prepayments and deposits BANFERES 16,435 64,491

30,769 65,823

P151



- New Century Group Hong Kong Limited ot & B EF WA R AT - -

P152
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B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
22. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 22 EBEFIEATFTEEIEEZER

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/SHORT TERM BEEEHERE
INVESTMENTS
Group
r5E
2006 2005
ZEERE —ZETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Listed equity investments, FTRERE
at market value: BMiE
Hong Kong BB 28,430 53,811
Elsewhere H 3 [ 5,888 -
34,318 53,811
The above equity investments at 31 March 2006 were RZBEZRF=ZA=+—H Ll
classified as held for trading. HIREDDERBFIEESR -
At 31 March 2006, the Group's short term investments RZEERNF=ZA=1+—H  K&EH
amounting to HK$29,668,000 (2005: HK$38,714,000) A2129,668,0008 L (ZZEZ R F -
and HK$4,650,000 (2005: HK$15,097,000) were 38,714,000/ 7T) % 4,650,000/ 7T
pledged to secure a margin account facility granted to —ZEZTRF 15,097,000 7T) 2
the Group and to secure a general banking facility FEHREEEER  UoRIREERT
granted to the Group, respectively (notes 24 and 35). rEEZRESEPEER —MRIRTT
At the balance sheet date, neither the margin account ZEE (H5524%35) - R&EEH - I
facility nor the general banking facility was utilised. ABARZFCRFEEH—RIRTT

& -
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23.BRERBREEEY
Group Company
N
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE “EERF ZBERE ZTThF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TR THEL TER THET
Cash and bank balances RERBITER 3,416 2,382 810 826
Time deposits EHER 164,736 31,285 62,403 -
168,152 33,667 63,213 826
Less: Pledged time B RBRTER
deposits for short term BEEMEH
bank loan EH 24 (17,550) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ REREEEEY 150,602 33,667 63,213 826
: - P153

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on RITEFR 2 DRESE B IRITEN
daily bank deposits rates. Short term time deposits are EIF AR S - RHEIEHERZ
made for varying periods of between one day and one FHREENTF—HE—FT7%  KT¥
year depending on the immediate cash requirements AEBZAFHEEFTEME » WIKR
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short HHTHERMEFRE - Hea kRS
term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the EEYREEAERZEEEREAER

cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits FEEMRE -

approximates to their fair values.
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 24 At BMITEX
Group
i
Effective 2006 2005
interest —E2ERE _ITTHHE
rate Maturity HK$'000 HK$'000
BRA= 8 THER FHET
Current TE
Bank loans, secured  ETER (BEKA) Prime — 2.7% to 2007
HIBOR + 2.25%  —ZT T+ 4 16,918 21,200
REENE-27E
EEBRITAE
FE+2.25
Non-current ERE
P154 Bank loans, secured  ETE R (BEA) Prime — 2.7% to 2007-
—_— HIBOR + 2.25% 2019 87,392 74,600
REENE-27E —TTLFZE
EEBROIAE —hEF
FE+2.25F
104,310 95,800
Analysed into: WA
Bank loans repayable:  ZBR AT MR E &
ZHITER
Within one year on —FANHEEKX
demand 16,918 21,200
In the second year F_F 9,391 7498
In the third to fifth E=ZFEFERF
years, inclusive (BEERME) 34,718 30,7%4
After the fifth year HF% 43,283 36,368
104,310 95,800
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

0

)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

mortgages over the Group's leasehold office
premises together with its prepaid land premiums
and investment properties which had an aggregate
carrying value at the balance sheet date of
approximately HK$390,165,000 (2005:
HK$340,305,000) (notes 15, 16 and 17);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposit
amounting to US$2,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$17,550,000) (note 23);

a first legal mortgage over one of the Group's

cruise ships (note 15);

a deed of legal assignment of charter proceeds
relating to one of the Group’s cruise ships with
the bank reserving its right to demand for the full

charter proceeds to be paid;

corporate guarantees provided by the Company;

and

unconditional and first demand guarantees given
by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng and Mr. Ng Eng
Leng up to US$6,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$48,750,000). Ng Cheow Leng is the
beneficiary of the Huang Group.

Except for the secured bank loan of HK$7,800,000

which is denominated in United States dollars, all other

bank loans are in Hong Kong dollars. All bank loans

bear floating interest rate. The carrying value of all

bank loans approximate to their fair value. The fair

value of bank loans has been calculated by discounting

the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest

rates.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

24 st BRITE X (&)

REEE TRITERA TS IEEE
EEiNE

() AEEZHEHRLAEMEERE

TR B LA R EME 2 1LH -
CREEEZHEREE
%) /390,165,000 L (=L H
% : 340,305,000 jv) (K&
15 16%17)

ReEE R

N A

(i) ~&EE=E T EHTF 2,250,000
ZE7t (FHE R 17,550,000 7T) 2
R (f5E23)

(i) AEBHEP —HBEH 2 E—IEE
B (MHE15) ¢

(iv)y "REBHEP — BB 2 HEMS
RIAZEEERERZE - RITRE
HEMNBREEE2HEEMSK
I8

V) ARFHEZARER: &

(vi) SRR A N S PRI O A AT IR 1t
ZEBGERIREREEERER
% 6,250,000% Tt (A & »
48,750,000/ 7T) - =B &
Huang GroupZ &z A ©

br B R 17 B 5 7,800,000/% 7T 15
NETLREEBMIN - FTE EMIRTT
ERTIAB T REEBA - FIARTT
ERORFBNEAE - MBERITE
HZEEmEREEQNFEEBES © R1T
Bz AV EETEBRRITMNER
BEAARKRBSAEMETHE ©
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31 March 2006 Z=ZEEANF=ZF=+—-H
25. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, OTHER 25.FE{TE ZBRF > FETFIE - H

PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED EMRIEEWRE
The aged analysis below shows the Group’s trade WNTRAEEZENEZEREEMm
payables, based on goods receipt date and the W B B B R AR 7S 1R 4 B BR AR 5t 2 BR
rendering of the services. AT o
Group
rEHE
2006 2005
—EERE —TThE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Trade payables FERT 8 58N
Current to 180 days A Z180H 4,406 12,408
Over 180 days #BiE180H 12,529 -
16,935 12,408
P156 e .
- Accruals and other payables ERTRIEREMEMERR 47,905 46,206
64,840 58,614
The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing JERT B 5 R R H A B BR R BT 5T

and are normally settled on 90-day terms. B —HRERIOBANEE -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the prior year, on 20 July 2004 and 1 March 2005,
the Company issued two two-year convertible bonds
with an interest rate of 1% per annum on the respective
principal amounts of US$10,565,194 (equivalent to
approximately HK$82,409,000) and US$8,450,155
(equivalent to approximately HK$65,911,000) to a
fellow subsidiary, NCCL, for the acquisition of an
aggregate of 45% equity interest in and the related
shareholder’s loan of NCML. These convertible bonds
are convertible into new shares at the option of the
bondholders for a period of two years from the date
of issue at the respective conversion prices of HK$0.61
per share and HK$0.62 per share. There is no early
redemption right provided to both bondholders and
the Company. During the year, two bonds were fully

converted into share capital of the Company (see note

28(0)).

On 3 January 2006, the Company issued a convertible
bond with an interest rate of 1% per annum on the
principal amounts of US$6,337,616 (equivalent to
approximately HK$49,433,000) to NCCL for the
acquisition of 15% equity interest in and the related
shareholder’s loan of NCML (see note 19). This
convertible bond is convertible into new shares for a
period of two years from the date of issue at the
conversion price of HK$0.63 per share. There is no
early redemption right provided to both bondholders
and the Company.

The fair value of the embedded derivative financial
instruments was estimated at the issuance date by
reference to Binomial model. The residual amount is
assigned as the convertible bonds is included in the

non-current liability.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 26. AiaBEERNSHTE LM T

8=

EF RZZTETNFELA=-ZFTHEZ
TTRAF=A—A8  ARAAA—RA
R B A RINCCLEITM M A& 5D
B A 10,565,194% T (L F K
82,409,000/% jt) K& 8,450,155 7T
(9B £ 65,911,0008 L) ~ F 7
KIEZMERABRRKRES - 1ERIK
BENCMLA 45008 # K HHER R E
RZRME - AR ESF A AR RN E
fTHERETMF B AD FHRIRRE
FHR0.6177C K%0.628 L2 5 Al 2
REHFERBIRD - EHFFHEAR
ARARWERFERE - FA - WH
BFEXHEBRASARARAN (F2
BB 5E28(c)) °

RZZEEZERF—H=B8 ' AQdM"A
NCCLET—MHENERIEMA SR
5 6,337,616 50 (8 A & R
49,433,000/8 7T) 2 FI#AREZ - DA
U B8 BANCMLZ 15% /% 4 4 25 I AH
BRERER(BELHME19) %A
AR E A R B 1T B BRRE 5T R 55 HARE
NI EFNR0.638 LB AR
Mo BERFBEARRNARNEIZEE
o 4 -

EUTASRITARETRHRZAF
BEDZ2B_AXAHEEEREAG
e RSB NIERUBRKRESHE
& WAt AFRBEERN -
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BY 7% ¥R &= MY &%

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 26. Al &S KRN ST E &/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS I A (&)
(continued)

The convertible bonds and the embedded derivative AMERESFAASTESRIAE YD

financial instruments are analysed as follows: Mo o
2006 2005
—EBRE —ZTRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ff 7 TER THET
(Restated)
(&3)
Convertible bonds: ARRES
At 1 April KmMA—A
As previously reported PRI 148,320 -
Opening adjustments FNRE 2.4(a) (78,342) -
69,978 -
Nominal value of convertible ~ RERZEITZ
bonds issued during ArkES 2
P158 the year [ERE 49,433 148,320
Embedded derivative RETHEZ
financial instruments E0T4E
at the issuance date TRIA (17,285) -
Convertible bonds at RETHEZ
the issuance date AR E S 32,148 148,320
Interest expense M B X 8 22,327 632
Interest paid ERFE (1,133) (412)
Conversion into share capital ¥ 3 A&F A& (89,294) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 34,026 148,540
Less: accrued interest B EETRIER
included in accruals 2 FEEHFIS - (220)
34,026 148,320
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Y 7% 3 & MY 5%
31 March 2006 Z=—EBEXF=ZF=+-H

4=

26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 26 . A/l E S RN EITE &t

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The convertible bonds bear effective interest rate of
24%-117% and will be matured in 2008. The fair

value of the convertible bonds approximated to its fair

T8 (&)

ABREEFRZERI X B24%E
117% @ WHER ZZZ/\NFEH - 7
BRESFZEDEEEQAFEEE

o+

value. a oo
2006 2005
—EEBRE —TTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
(Restated)
(7))
Embedded derivative RENTE
financial instruments: SRIA:
At 1 April KmA—H 128,963 -
Additions from new FRNET
convertible bonds issued A MR E S
during the year #m 17,285 -
Conversion into share capital 83 &K A& (21,889) - P159
Fair value gains recognised RERER —_—
during the year N EEKE (112,468) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 11,891 -

The fair value of the embedded derivative financial
instruments is determined by reference to Binomial
model. The significant assumptions used in the
calculation of the values of the embedded derivative

financial instruments were as follows:

(i) the valuation is ground on the assumption that
the conditions precedent stated in the Subscription
Agreement of the convertible bonds will be
fulfilled, and there is no default, no delay of
payments to bondholders, no earlier redemption,
no potential violation of governing law as

prescribed in the Subscription Agreement.

MEFESRIAY ATFEE SR
[ T E AT - AHE R
EHTAESMTAZ BEMERZEX
CESURIE

() HEDRRAIRERES ZRBERB
& P 2 SRR R - T
B|AEEM  WELERAESFR
BANK UEEFED XE
RBHEMIEEZEE RO ZE

EERZBERMIEL -
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31 March 2006 Z—ZEEAE=ZF=+—H
26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND EMBEDDED 26. A& ESHE RN ESHTESH

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS T8 (&)

(continued)

(i) the volatility of the share price of the Company (i) RRBIRAE Z K& T2 A Al #
has made reference to its share price movement IR E 31T 2 B F A2 IREIK
two years prior to the issuance of the convertible FIEL o TNRGE B H 2 78 55
bonds. The expected volatility ranged from 25% IR T 25%%E 68% % -

to 68% for different valuation dates.

(iii) the risk free rate has made reference to the yield (i) mEARFNEE2RINEERES
of Exchange Fund Notes (“EFN”) as at the (MNVEESER]) RNEB 2 #ET
respective issuance dates. The year of maturity of BHEAZ e Ed - Prig 2 SME
the EFN being referred is determined in A EHFINEFHIIREBRRE
accordance with the life of the option. FHET -

(iv) with reference to historical records, it is assumed (iv) 2RE L RENBRES
that the dividend was 2% during the option life. HAZRE A2% -

P160
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27T REHRIEEE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BREMBEEREERFTANZE 8N
during the year is as follows: o
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE

Group
TEH
Accelerated Revaluation
tax of
depreciation properties Total
MERERE MEE M- wmEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAET
At 1 April 2005 R-ZETRFWMA—H
(restated) (&3) 1,010 31,305 32,315
Deferred tax charged to FARZRAMG 2
the income statement during B FER T8 P161
the year (note 10) (Htiz10) 257 1,929 2,186 ~—m—
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZEZERF=ZA=1+—H
at 31 March 2006 ZEEHRBERERR 1,267 33,234 34,501
Deferred tax assets EEHBEEE

Group
REE

Losses available for
future taxable profit

CIREE:§ B
ERBEF ZEE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2005 (restated) RZEZERFMA—H(EF)) (704)
Deferred tax credited to the FFAFAkEER 2
income statement during IR SE T TR
the year (note 10) (KHtaE10) (1,436)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZEERF=HA=+—H
31 March 2006 ZIRIETRIE & E AR TR (2,140)
Net deferred tax liabilities at RZEZERNF=ZA=+—H
31 March 2006 ZIBEETIE B EFEE 32,361
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 27 i IE F5IE & 18 ()
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE
Group
rEEH
Accelerated Revaluation
tax of
depreciation properties Total
MERBRE MES R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THET THET
At 1 April 2004 RZZZMFEMHA—H - 15,127 15,127
Deferred tax charged to the FRWEZAMBR 2
income statement during BRERIIE (Mfat10)
the year (note 10) (restated) (E51) 1,010 16,178 17,188
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZEERF=-A=+—H
P162 31 March 2005 (restated) ZERHBRAESB (EY) 1,010 31,305 32,315
Deferred tax assets ELERMIBEE
Group
AEE
Losses available for
future taxable profit
AT {4 3K 85 R 3R
EREB AN ZEIE
HK$'000
THET
At 1 April 2004 RZETEMFMHH—H -
Deferred tax credited to the FFAFEAkEE 2
income statement EEFRLIE (MfaF10)
during the year (note 10) (restated) (E3) (704)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZEERF=H=+—H
31 March 2005 (restated) ZIRERIEEEBRE (EY)) (704)
Net deferred tax liabilities at I AF=H=+—H

e
31 March 2005 (restated) ZIRERIE B EFRE (EY) 31,611




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and
Indonesia of HK$53,577,279 (2005: HK$168,808,000)
and HK$24,542,353 (2005: HK$16,548,000),
respectively. The Company has tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of HK$26,195,346 (2005:
HK$116,458,000). The tax losses in Hong Kong are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The tax losses in Indonesia can be carried forward for
a maximum period of ten years. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses
because such tax losses have arisen in companies that
have been loss-making or ceased businesses for some
time, or in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain
that future taxable profit would be generated to utilise

these tax loses.

At 31 March 2006, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2005: Nil) for tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability

to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

27 BERIA &K (|)

REBRBEBRIE D BIE LT EE
853,577,279 L (Z T A F
168,808,000/ 7T) & 24,542,353%
T (ZZEZETARHF : 16,548,000/
TC) c ARBREBEELEZBIEER
426,195,346 T (ZF T A F -
116,458,000 7T) - REBBEEZ
THIEE 18 Al PR HA A 1E K SHER 1S B 1B
Z AR ZRKERTEF - RENEE
ECBEEBRRZAAETF - X%
B ARZEBEEBRRRLEHIES
E - AZEBNEEE B —BEHEE
B RIE¥S BEMNKEERAE
V2 W TE A% B BE AR R AR FE AR Ui A DA IR
HZEMEBB I RAESE

N-BEXE=A=+—0 A%H
B B 2 71 3 4 B RO B R T A
> BATE I ) A SR B R IR IE B TR
Bl (CETRE &) ARZER
EEL  AEEYEENHESE

Annual Report 2006 4F #i -
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28 B &
Shares iy
Group and Company
AEEREAAT
2006 2005
—EERE “ZTEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Authorised: ETERA
2,000,000,000 ordinary 2,000,000,000/% & %
shares of HK$0.01 each EE0.OVE L LB 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEATRBERA
1,124,172,062 1,124,172,062%
(2005: 851,994,077) (ZZZTAF :851,994,0770%)
ordinary shares of BFREEO0.O]
HK$0.01 each Bz LB 11,242 8,520

During the year, the movements in share capital were

as follows:

@

®)

The subscription rights attaching to 5,000,000 and
6,100,000 option shares were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.271 and HK$0.71,
respectively (note 29), resulting in the issue of
11,100,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, for a total
cash consideration,
HK$5,686,000.

before expenses, of

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 25
August 2005, the Company declared a final
dividend of HK$0.018 per share which was
satisfied by cash with an option for shareholders
to elect to receive shares of the Company (the
“Scrip Shares”). On 26 September 2005, a cash
dividend of approximately HK$2,901,000 was paid
and 19,673,665 shares were issued at a price of
HK$0.632 per share to certain shareholders who
elected to receive Scrip Shares in lieu of cash
final dividend (note 33(iii)). It resulted in an
increase in share capital and share premium by
approximately HK$197,000 and HK$12,237,000,
respectively.

EpRAZBBHMT:

(@)

®)

5,000,000 }.6,100,0000% B % #&
R Frbt A 2 REEEITRE - R
BESHA0271B T R0.71E
T (M 5% 29) H OB % 1T
11,100,000 &% 0.0178 7T 2 i
o RETRXAICRESRRER
5,686,000/% T °

BER-_ZEZTRAFNA-_+HH
BB ERRER - AAFIEIR
BR0.018B T2 RERE - B
AR & A4 - IR IR AT R =2 U ER
AARRAD (BRG] B -
RZZETRFNAZ=-+H B
S IR € % B 492,901,000% 7T
RoorA) 2 12 AR BOR 9 DA R
BeERBEREZETRERS
fx 0.632% 7T 2 B #& % 17
19,673,665/ & 5 ( MY 5%
33(ii)) o M EE IR A K5 m
B 2 B8 1N 4 197,000 T &
12,237,000/8 7T °
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A
28. Bg 7 (48)
R 17 (4&)

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

(c) Pursuant to board resolutions dated 7 November

2005 and 11 November 2005, the Company
approved NCCL to sell, assign and transfer part of
the convertible bonds in the principal sum in
aggregate of US$6,000,000 (approximately
HK$46,800,000) to two third parties, Ms. Chin
Lai Seong and Kam Wu Investments Pte. Limited,
on 8 November 2005 and 14 November 2005,

respectively.

On 9 November 2005 and 15 November 2005,
the convertible bonds with respective aggregate
principal amounts of approximately US$10,565,194
(equivalent to approximately HK$82,409,000) and
approximately US$8,450,155 (equivalent to
approximately HK$65,911,000) were converted
into 135,095,919 and 106,308,401 new shares,
respectively, at the respective conversion price of
HK$0.61 per share and HK$0.62 per share. Due
to the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, upon
conversion, the carrying value of the convertible
bonds and the fair value of the embedded financial
instruments at date of conversion were transferred
to the Company's equity. The share conversions
resulted in an increase in share capital and share
premium by approximately HK$2,414,000 and
HK$108,769,000, respectively. Please refer to note
2.4(a) for details.

(o) REEHA-_ZTZTHF+— At

Ak—_ZEZRF+—-—A+—BZ
EFEEREFR ALK&
NCCLA R ZZEZTRF+— A
NBR-_ZZZRAF+—A+MH
HE HEEZhEBLARAH
6,000,000 7T (446,800,000
) ZE DA MRES TRE R
= 73 Chin Lai Seong# * K& Kam

Wu Investments Pte. Limited °

RZTETRF+—AABR=F
THE+—A+HHE  B4X¢HE
5 BI#910,565,194% 7T (4%
M 82,409,000/ L ) & 4
8,450,155% 7t (4 # F R
65,911,000 7T) 2 Al MR EH
SRR EIRESROIBTRE
f%0.628 T8 # % 135,095,919
i% X 106,308,401 & #T &5 ° A
REMEBB G EAEI2RE
395% - REEIRR - NIRAR A E
AMRREHFZEEHERAES S/
TEZAFEBEBARRA ZK
o MRBEURA RN &EE D
B 04 2,414,000 T &
108,769,000 7T ° 15 & B
MIaE2.4(a) °
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28.f 7 (4)
Shares (continued) IR0 (4&)
A summary of the transactions during the year with FRNEBARRD ETRA Lt &
reference to the above movements in the Company's RSB T

issued share capital is as follows:

Issued Share
Number of share  premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BROTRGHE CBRTRE ROEER CH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it TER TER TER
At 1 April 2004 RZZTMEMA-A 831,729,914 8317 368,401 376,718
Share options exercised T ERE 14,950,000 150 3,947 4,097
Scrip Shares RERR 5,314,163 53 5,856 5,909
Share premium cancellation* TR R E - - (368310)  (368,310)
P166 L
_— At 31 March 2005 R-TERF=A=t-H
and 1 April 2005 RZZTHFMA—H 851,994,077 8,520 9,894 18,414
Share options exercised TR E 28(a), 29 11,100,000 11 6,743 6,854
Scrip Shares RERH 28(b) 19,673,665 197 12,237 12,434
Conversion of convertible bonds ~ B# AR EH
into share capital BRA 26, 28(c) 241,404,320 2,414 108,769 111,183
At 31 March 2006 RZFERFZA=1-H 1,124,172,062 11,242 137,643 148,885
*  Pursuant to a special general meeting dated 27 May * O RBEBR_ZEEOFRAA-_TLERASE
2004, the shareholders resolved to cancel the TZREFINRE  RERZARAER
Company's entire accumulated losses of approximately B 7242 A #9368,310,000/% 7T 2 %
HK$423,614,000 as at 30 September 2003 by debiting & B R & K~ 755,304,000/ 7T
the Company's share premium account of approximately ZEBAES  BHAHEHARARKRZ
HK$368,310,000 and the Company's contributed surplus EE=FNA=+HLK423,614,000
of HK$55,304,000. The said cancellation has been BT B2TEEE - EEHEEER
approved by the relevant government regulatory body REMBHNEE BIBIE -
in Bermuda.
Share options BB
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are BRAARRRIERETE 2 F BN

included in note 29 to the financial statements. 755 3R KB FE29 ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group's operations.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(a) Participants
Participants are any directors (including executive,
non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) and employees of the Group
and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers of
any member of the Group who the board of
directors of the Group (the “Board”) considers, in
its sole discretion, have contributed to the Group

and any shareholders of the Group (the “Grantee”).

B %5 ¥R 3R MY 5
31 March 2006 —ZEEXNF=ZF=1—H

29. B i #E 5T &
RNRAFHRE - EBREE ([ZF
g1 ZEFEZBEMNAMALRERSE
ERNELBERMZ A ER2HERLT

ok B K Bl R o

Zat B ZFHIBWT ¢

(a) 2HE
ZEELSAEBREMNES (21
AT~ BERTT R IIEMITE
F)REERAEEESE ([E
=) 2 RAR/ELEELER
Mz NEBEAKBE AT ZEM
BER (BimedHEE)  B@A
DEEE > ABRE - HER - RIE
A BP - EBREN GEEB
B BRARRGHERU R
AEBEMBKRR ([FEEALD ©
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 20. BRLESTE ()
(b) Subscription price (b) REEE
The Subscription price shall be determined by the REBEDHEEG2RET - #
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event THEERUTERSE

shall not be less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.01 () XRRIEKREECOIETLLZ
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated A& (TRR f7 1) 72 RS AR M 3% 1B
in the daily quotation sheets issued by The BHR([#% 5 B HR)) TE & B He
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ARG AERRAR ([HR
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of the grant of Frl) & BmERAFH W
an option (the “Date of Grant"); & :

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as (i) WOREZEED B BATRE
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by EEAEBXAATAMESR
the Stock Exchange for the five business days Rz FHWTE - &
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

P168 ,
- (i) the nominal value of a Share. (iii) WD E1E °
() Maximum number of shares (c) B3 LBR

The maximum number of Shares in respect of RIEZET 8RR H 2 BB AR ]

which options may be granted under the Scheme TEITZROHEZ T EEANEK

shall not exceed 10%, in nominal amount of the MZEtEI AR AR B BITRA
issued share capital of the Company on the EEZ10% ([FrE|XERRE]) ©
adoption date of the Scheme (the “Scheme FFEFTEIRERRBEE - WTEA

Mandate Limit"). Options which lapse in RIBZ T B G R R K 2 B A -

accordance with the terms of this Scheme will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the

Scheme Mandate Limit.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d) Maximum number of options granted to
each participant
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to a specifically
identified single Grantee under this Scheme shall
not (when aggregated with any Shares subject to
any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company) within any 12-month period exceed 1%

of the shares in issue (the “Individual Limit").

(e) Period of exercise of options
An option may be exercised in a period to be
notified by the Board to each Grantee at the time
of making an offer which shall not expire later

than 10 years from the Date of Grant.

(f) Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme is valid and ettective for a period of
10 years commencing on its adoption date,
23 September 2002, unless otherwise cancelled

or amended.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Y 7% 3 & MY 5%
31 March 2006 Z=—EBEXF=ZF=+-H

20. Bl E (|)
d) E2HEERBREZ LR

PAMER+ — @R 8E - EEE
B AAREZTE A e
&2 FE R B R AR IR AR 2 R fA]
H g A et 81 &% 2 BB M
BRI ZBMDER  &Z A8
BEETRMD Z1%([#E AR
#l) e

(e) BRAEZATHEM
BREANREZHERBERERE
EgANERARAZHEATT
& HEARERABHES TFA
fE o

(f) =t 8l 2R erFH
ZEA B RN EAB R T —F
NAZ+=AEF+FRER
BRETEEKKER RS E R

A
afg ©

P169

BREYEETERE AZEDIRBE
HEBRRRKEREZER -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited 7 # 42 % H & ¥ 7 W 2 #

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3% ¥Rk 3k M

3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BRI ST E (&)
The following share options were outstanding under FNEARRESTEIE T RITE B
the share option scheme during the year: RESEBINT
Number of share options Price of Company's shares*
BRERE FRARAER
At Granted Lapsed  Exercised At Immediately
Name of category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant of Exercisable period  Exercise price At grant date  before the At exercise date
of participant 005 theyear  theyear theyear 2006 share options of share options ~ of share options ~of options  exercise date of options
SREEL R-FREE RER RER RER W-RRAE EhR RERE  BEOR nERE
950 BA-A R I3 ik =R=t-8 BRERHAR BREGRE k& Eh:E BEH &L
HKS HKS HKS HKS
En i i i
Directors
g2
i Wison Ng 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 17 March 2003 17-03-03 to 16-03-13 0271 0265 N/A N/A
ERERE 5I=% ZERCEZATA TER TER
ZATtA 2 RtrB
- 5000000 - - 5,000,000 28 July 2005 260705 to 27-07-07 0.710 0.710 N/A N/A
“3TRF CEERFCACTAR TER TR
tRZTNE ECRREELACTLRA
r. Sio lon Kuan - 5,000,000 - (5,000,000 - 28 July 2005 2680705 to 27-0707 0710 0.710 0.740 0.740
ERRE it 5t ﬂznﬂitﬁ AR
tAZTNE FRLELACTLR
. Ng Wee Keat 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 17 March 2003 703 03 1 0 16:03-13 0271 0.265 N/A N/A
EEREE CEIzE F2ED) TER TER
SRTtR EE-TECAtAR
- 4500000 - - 4500000 28 July 2005 26:07-05 to 27-0707 0710 0710 N/A N/A
e ¥ 513 _unﬂﬂ /B TER TR
P170 tAZtIR FRLELACTLR
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 20 October 2003 20-10:03 t0 19-10-13 0301 0300 N/A N/A
EARME e+ 5533 CEEZETATR TR TR
tAZtE  ECR-ZEtATAB
- 4500000 - - 4500,000 28 July 2005 26-07-05 to 200707 0710 07110 N/A N/A
¥ 5k 3 ‘*fnﬂﬁ /8 TR il
tAZtNE  ECRREELACTHA
s, Lifin Ng 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 17 Mar[h 2003 17:03-03 to 16-03-13 021 0265 N/ N/A
BRI RRESAT4R TR TR
EZR-ZEZRH
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 28 July 2005 26-07-05 to 200707 0710 0710 N/A N/A
“$E1f CERRELACTAE TER TR
tAZtIE :fftﬁtﬁ.jtﬁ
r. Lo Ming Chi, Cherles - 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 28 July 2005 260705 to 200707 0710 0710 N/A N/A
SEERE CRRnf ZEERECACTNE ik ¥l
tAZtNE  ECRRLELACTHA
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 17 March 2003 17-03-03 10 16-03-13 0271 0.265 0.900 0.900
R 2t “RESEC AR
ATt Ez3-ZEZATAR
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 28 July 2005 28-0705 to 27-07-07 0710 0710 N/A N/A
ZRRnf ZEERFCACTNA TER TER
tAZTNE EIERYELACTHA
M. Yu Wai Man - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 26 July 2005 26-07-05 to 270707 0710 0710 N/A N/A
REXRE “ETRfF CERRECACTAR Lyl TR
tAZtNE EISTHELACftA
25000000 31,500,000 - (10,000,000) 46,500,000
Other emploees
EftRE - 5350000 (200000)  (740,000)* 4,410,000 28 July 2005 28-07:05 to 27-07:07 0710 0710 0790 0790
C$%1f CERRELACTAA
tAZTNE EIERtELACTtA
- - - (360,000 (360,000) 28 July 2005 268-07-05 to 27-07-07 0710 0710 0900 0890
“§%nf BELAZTAR
AZTA CRRLELACTLR
- 53000 (200000) (1100000) 4050000
Totel
4t /000000 36850000 (200000) (17,100000) 50550000
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

*

kk

The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the
date of the grant of the share options is the closing
price quoted in Stock Exchange on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.
The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the
date of the exercise of the share options is the weighted
average of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all of

the exercises of options within the disclosure category.

Share option reserve of respective share options in
aggregate of HK$1,168,000 was credited to share

premium upon exercise of share options.

There is no vesting period on the outstanding share

options granted to employees and directors.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was HK$7,058,000.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

29. B #E 8 (4

*

k%

RBERERLDBABEE 2 ARAR
MEBRIBROREZBRERL A
Hipl — @ 5 B BRI 2 K
ME - NEBRETERBREZ AN
REBDERITIITER B KERR
BB B 2 Bk ZZ PR OO RE CF B 4a T

Z o

SEHEREERERES X
1,168,000 o A BB R HEJE 1T BE 5
AR m (B o

RTREREFZHARITEZBRE

9

B -

RERARBZ2EREZZ A FEEE
7,058,000/% JT °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BRI ST E (&)

P172

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a Binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used
for the year ended 31 March 2006:

REARBDZARBEEBREZ A
FEEDREDBHRER - HEA R
EERALE B B Z G
R - TRBIRBE-FTN
FZA=T B LEFEEREXR
WAZER

Dividend yield (%) 4.48 K B 2% (%) 4.48
Historical volatility (%) 52.00 & £ % 1@ (%) 52.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.35 2 Bz A1) 2= (%) 3.35
Expected life of option (year) 2.00 A 2 TAHF H () 2.00

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The 11,100,000 share options exercised during the
year resulted in the issue of 11,100,000 ordinary shares
of the Company and new share capital of HK$111,000
and share premium of HK$6,743,000 (before issue
expenses), as further explained in note 28 in the

financial statement.

BREZERFMIOREBAE=ZF2
FEEHIEEE - WA ERTABED
W2 AT o T8 HI R IR 2 R B 52K
BRAIMR N ARKBE 2 RE - BERSH

=R R 4t
E\/T\/wz\l:l ©

AEATEERTEGRERLER
W2 AR E MR -

FRN 11 100000@%1&%55%17
&7 - BE{EE1T11,100,0000%8 A2

AR R FTARA11, ooo,aru&ﬂxh Pina
B 6,743,000 7T (ARMBEITH
%) HIERMBmEMN F28E —
fRRE o
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
50,550,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.5% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 50,550,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of
HK$505,500 and share premium of HK$32,607,200

(before issue expenses).

Pursuant to the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders at the special general meeting held on
25 February 2006, the Scheme Mandate Limit was
refreshed. At the date of the special general meeting,
there was an aggregate of 846,679,914 shares in issue.
Upon the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit,
the Company may grant options entitling holders
thereof to subscribe for 84,667,991 shares. Further
details of the refreshment were disclosed in the circular
dated 31 January 2006.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 20 April
2006, 500,000 share options with exercise price of
HK$0.710 per share were lapsed.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 50,050,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 4.5% of the Company's shares in issue

as at that date.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

29. B #E 8 (4

REHERB - RIEZE - XRFAE
50,550,000 i B e 8 ARATE - 491k
ARATRZA 2B BITRM4.5% °
ERRARBEBERAEBET - BT
BT 2BERES SR BT
50,550,000R% 75 A 7 #8 51 & 38 A% Mo 58
SNBE AN 505,500 7T+ LA R HIBR BT
2 B A% 19 )5 {8 32,607,200 7T ©

BERRR _ZTF_A=-+HH
BUOZKRREIAGRB —HE®
REBER - FTEIRELREERN - NR
REMNARKERIITHB HEB
846,679,914/ 2 TR H ~ B X5+
EIRAE EBR1E - AN A AR L AR
EEA ARIES4,667,991 G - F
Fz2EMFBER-ZZEEREF—A=
T—BZ@EEPERE -

DO

i

+
=}

e

4 HE  RZ_ZEZFWHA =+
H 78 258 KO0.710% Tt
%

500,00017 & A% # 2L 2% -

R sRF A EBH - RIFZE
&+ A2 A1HF50,050,00017 i B &
RITEE - R AR AIRZ B Z B #1T
B 19 4.5% -
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31 March 2006

—EEAFZA=1-A

30. RESERVES 30. &
(a) Group (a) A5 HE
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRARRREARE
Cruise Retained
Issued Share Property ship  Exchange profits/  Proposed
share  premium  Contributed  reveluation revaluation  translation ~ (accumulated final Minority Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve Teserve losses) ~ dividend Total  interests equity
kS Rt B4 LS 85 B RERA/  EERH L2
Bx BER B EREE  EfiRE fff (2EER) B & RREE  RESE
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 Hk$ 000 Hk$ 000 HK$ 000
Kt TEn Thn Thn ThL Thn Thn Tin TR ThR TEL TEL
At 1 Apil 2004 HZEEMERA-R
s previously reported Er2& 8317 368401 217891 6748 - 182 (372889) - 32316 (19253 213,063
Prior year adjustments rERE - - - (8749) - - (15127) - (23875) - (23875)
b restted £t 837 %00 2780 - - 80 (31970 S (19259 169,168
Share of revaluation AMidE
sumlus of cruie ships 4 - - - - 162 - - - 1622 - 162
Exchange realignment Eiig - - - - - (343) - - (383) (39 (38)
Totd income and expense ~ EFRREERL
for the year recognised ~ FEEUR
directly in equity 4% - - - - 1622 (343) - - 1279 (39) 1240
Net profit for the year TEERASE
(a5 restated) (&) - - - - - - 163 - 1368 (T414) 125209
Totel income and expense  ZEEAE
forthe year - - - - 1622 (343) 132623 - (1453) 126449
Share premium
cancellaion pi] - (3683100 (35308) - - - 03614 - - - -
Issue of shares 8 203 9,803 - - - - - - 10,006 - 10,006
Interim 2005 dividend 1 - - - - - - (10,044 - (10,044) - (10,044)
Proposed final 2005
iidend 1 - - - - - -3 B - - -
At 31 March 2005 e Sk ok 8520 9,894 162,587 - 1622 1,459 142,888 15,335 342305 (26,706) 315599
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f# # (4&)
(a) Group (a) AN&EHE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BLARREAARE
Cuise Retained
Issued Share Share Property ship  Exchange  profits/  Proposed
share  premium  option Contributed  revaluation revaluation translation (accumulated final Minority Total
capital  account  reserie  suplus  reseve  reseve  reseve  losses)  dividend Total  interests equity
BEff Rt BBE B4 LS L] B RERN/ RERH 5y

Re  EEE 2 B EfER EGER fif (2E5R) it ai  BREE  RESE
Notes HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS00O  HKSO00  HKS0OO  HKS000  HKSO000
i Ten  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEn TEn TER

=

1 Apr 2005

As previously reported EriER 8520 9,894 - 162587 B8 1622 1459 11313 15355 396918 (26706) 370212

Prior year adjustments HERE - - - - (3 - - (308%) - (54613) - (3461

Open adjustment ESIEE - - - - - - - (30401) - (50401 - (30401)

As restated | 8520 9,894 - 162587 - 162 1459 92,487 15335 291904 (26,706) 265,198
Share of associaes' revaluation  HEBELE 2B

surlus of cruie ships i - - - - - 5030 - - - 5,030 - 5030
Exchange realignment Eiiz - - - - - - 810 - - 810 2848 3658
Surplus on revluation BhEd

of cruise ships Bg 15 - - - - - 5333 - - - 5333 3554 8,887 ﬂ
Equitysetled share option HREREL

amangements BREZH b - - 7058 - - - - - - 7058 - 7058
Tote income and expense for the  EZRREEDZ

year recognised diectly FERAR

i equly 48 - N 3 - IR 810 . S OBBl g Mg
Net profit for the year TERRAFE - - - - - - -3 - 0338 7906 210244
Tote income and expense for ~ AEFHE

the year 4g - - 7058 - = 10363 810 202338 - 220569 14308 234871
Acquistion of subsidiaries WEHEAR 3 - - - - - - - - - - 19794 19794
Disposal of subsiciares HENERT b)) - - - - - - - - - - 8 8
Fnel 2005 diidend decared ~ BEEZ-337F

KBRS i - - - - - - - - (1533)  (1533) - (1533)

Issue of shares L 28,29 R/ RPN (1,168) - - - - - - 19303 - 129303
Interim 2006 dividend N 1 - - - - - - - (16789 - (16789) - (16789
Proposed final 2006 dividend 12 - - - - - - - 2483 20483 - - -

At 31 Merch 2006 RZTZREZR=1-8 1240 137643 5800 162,567 - 11,985 2269 255554 0483 609,653 1418 617131
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f# 4 (4&)
(b) Company (b) &R F]
Retained
Share Share profits/ Proposed
premium option  Contributed  (accumulated final
account reserve surplus [osses) dividend Total
REEN/  BBAH
ROEEE BRERE  BHRR  (REER) k& At
Notes HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fist Tt THT Tt T THL Tt
At 1 April 2004 RZZEMEMA-A 368,401 - 217891 (423.451) - 162,841
Share premium cancellation R (A E(E 28 (368,310) - (55,304) 423614 - -
Premium arising from the 2kt
issue of shares hE 28 9,803 - - - - 9,803
Profit for the year KEE & - - - 51,960 - 51,960
Interim 2005 dividend ZEERERHRE 12 - - - (10,044) - (10,044)
Proposed final 2005 dividend  ~ZERFREXHRE 12 - - - (15,335) 15,335 -
At 31 March 2005 RZBEREZA=1-H 9,894 - 162,587 26,744 15,335 214,560
At 1 April 2005 R-ETREMA-A
As previously reported RE2H 9,894 - 162,587 26,744 15,335 214,560
Prior year adjustment FERE 2.4(2) - - - (50401) - (50401)
P176 As restated &7 9,894 - 162,587 (23,657) 15,335 164,159
Profit for the year REEEN - - - 147513 - 147513
Final 2005 dividend BERZ-EZ1%
declared RHRE - - - - (15,335) (15,335)
Interim 2006 dividend ZEERERARE 12 - - - (16,788) - (16,788)
Equity - settled share option A EEHE 2
amangements BRERH 29 - 7,058 - - - 7058
Premium arising from the BIkh
issue of shares BE 28,29 127749 (1,168) - - - 126,581
Proposed final 2006 dvidend —FEAFRZERERE 12 - - - (22,483) 22,483 -
137,643 5,890 162,587 84,585 22,483 413,188

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from: AEBZEHRARKRE -

() the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990, () *EER—HANZEFARA+=H
representing the difference between the nominal HITZEH - BARRIRIBEARS
value of the Company’s shares issued under the 5 85 4B AT 35 1T I f) TH B BE AN 5 [
Group reorganisation, and the nominal value of FiT W B8 2 A2 AR & B AR {7 T (B 6
the shares and share premium of the former A tn @ Bt =58

holding company acquired by the Group;
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30. RESERVES (continued)

31.

(i) a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999; and

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the above reorganisation, representing the
difference between the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group
reorganisation and the then consolidated net asset

value of the acquired subsidiaries; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2 June
1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 3 January 2006, the Group acquired an additional
15% equity interest in NCML and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries from NCCL, a related company and repaid
a shareholders’ loan of HK$49,433,000 to NCCL on
behalf of NCML,
HK$56,856,000. NCML and its subsidiaries are engaged

at a total consideration of
in cruise ship chartering business. Further details of
the transaction are included in note 19 to the financial
statements. The consideration was satisfied by cash of
HK$7,423,000 and the issue of one two-year
convertible bond in principal amount of US$6,337,616
(equivalent to HK$49,433,000) (see note 26).

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

30. f# # (&)

31.

(i) RE-NANANFARA-RETZ
BN E AT B B B R
Ho &

RRABZzEHRBHBEKE

() L#tE#HE BRARFREASNEHE
B 4E BT 3 1T B TE B B AT AR Y
BRARERZEAEEFEZE
&

(i) RE-NANANAFARNA-RETZ
BN E AT B B B R
Ilill o

BRE-—NWN—FBAREQRRE (EF]
R) - EZOEPIE AR 2 & T 15
T RRBZEHEERA 2K TR
oo

Eg AR

R-ZETENF—A=8  AEEKE
X 856,856,000/ 7. [ — H A E A 7
NCCLIEENCMLE H 2 BB A7l 2
FIN15%IR AR - KA NCMLA
NCCLE 2 I R & X 49,433,000/%
JC ° NCML X H Kff B A &) ¢ = B ¥m 78
EX% e FERAX S Z2E—FSHBIHRN
FHmEMTI1o- RKEEUNRSE
7,423,000 T RET—HASER
6,337,616 7T (1H% 749,433,000
BIT) 2 MFBABRKRESZ T AX
F (B2 B M E26)
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=+ =

B 7% ¥R &R M EE

31 March 2006 =—ZFEAF=A=1—-H

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of NCML and its wholly-owned subsidiaries as at the
date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying
amounts immediately before the acquisition were as

follows:

X A2 NE )

NCMLEEZ2EH B A A 20 #5&
EMBERKEBI AFEE - N
EREHWEEBEA ZEERTAED
T

Fair value
recognised Carrying
on acquisition amount
R B EEER
ZAFEE BREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ft it FTET FTET
Property, plant and equipment ME  BE KRR 15 355,953 355,953
Trade receivables FEWE IR 13,190 13,190
Pledged time deposit BIRETHFR 17,550 17,550
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 44,134 44,134
Accruals JE & I8 (10) (10)
Interest-bearing bank loan FEBRITER (13,650) (13,650)
Charter deposits received BERiEERS (35,880) (35,880)
Due to related companies &< B8 38 1A ) 3R (2,247) (2,247)
379,040 379,040
Loan advanced from the Group rEERFZER (197,734) (197,734)
Loan advanced from a minority AEEWRBRRZ
shareholder of the Group's DERRRN 2
subsidiaries B (131,822) (131,822)
49,484 49,484
Minority interest YR EER 30 (19,794)
Amount receivable from NCML ot U = TE R U
on acquisition NCMLZ R 49,433
79,123
Satisfied by XAAR
Cash Be 7,423
Convertible bond AR ES 49,433
Interest in associate BTGB & A Al e 22,267

79,123
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31. X% & H ()
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash WEMBARZHENREZEEYR
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries HFEINMT -
is as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE (7,423)
Cash and bank balances acquired P ER e RIR1THETF 44,134
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents RRENBRA R RRE2SEY
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries MAEEE 36,711
Since its acquisition, NCML and its wholly-owned BE_TTNF=A=+—8HL*F
subsidiaries contributed HK$44,975,000 to the Group's E - BEBEREUR  NCMLEEZ
turnover and HK$37,318,000 to the consolidated profit BB AREAEE 2 EXTREE
for the year ended 31 March 2006. i F Bl B BL 44,975,000 T & P179
37,318,000/ 7T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of MaRNENEET  NEBZFHE
the year, the revenue from continuing operations of & W R N AN 0% NS 59 Bl 15
the Group and the profit of the Group for the year 50109,214,000/% 7T }2 45,486,000/
would have been increased by HK$109,214,000 and JL °

HK$45,486,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% ¥R 3k MY &

31 March 2006

ZEEXFZA=Z+-H

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

2. HEME A

2006 2005
—EERE —TTRE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ft it TERT FET
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE:
Property, plant and mE - WE Rk
equipment & 15 96 223
Interests in associates Prib B & ARl 74 -
Properties held for resale RIFEEYE - 9,829
Inventories FE 170 -
Trade receivables, ERE SRR -
prepayments, other BNHIE - A
receivables and deposits R R RE® 773 63
Cash and bank balances ReRBITET 144 -
P180 Interest-bearing bank loans, SERTER BEX
_— overdrafts and other loans R H M E %R - (6,854)
Trade payables, accruals, ERE SR - Eaf
other payables and HIE - Hitb A ERR
deposits received kelxs (2,776) (6,911)
Due to a related company FEft — R E N B KA (150) -
Minority interests DR R ER 82 -
(1,587) (3,650)
Gain on disposal of & BT 8 2 A
subsidiaries Yoz 6 3,587 4,150
2,000 500
Satisfied by: TRAE
Cash R 2,000 500
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. HEM B A (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash BREEMRNBARCZESRRSZEY
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is MAFESAAT -
as follows:
2006 2005
ZEBARE —_TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Cash consideration RERE 2,000 500
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrtiERe RRITET (144) -
Net inflow of cash and cash RHENBRARZERE
equivalents in respect of the LEEEEY
disposal of subsidiaries A58 1,856 500
The results of the subsidiaries disposed of in the years REBEZE_ZEENER_ZETRF=H P181
ended 31 March 2006 and 2005 had no significant =t+t—HIEFEEEZHBERARIZE @ —
impact on the Group's consolidated turnover or profit BHAEBEZEFEZIFEAEERN

after tax for those years. PRt m A mMEMERNTE -
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31 March 2006 —ZEXF=ZF=1+—-H

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

Major non-cash transactions

(i) Issue of convertible bonds
During the year, the Group acquired an additional
15% equity interest and repaid the related
shareholder's loan to NCCL on behalf of NCML
for an aggregate consideration of HK$56,856,000.
Out of the total consideration, HK$49,433,000 was
satisfied by the issue of the Company’s convertible
bond. Details of the Company’s convertible bonds

are included in note 26.

(i) Conversion of convertible bonds into share capital
During the year, the convertible bonds with
respective aggregate principal amounts of
approximately US$10,565,194 (equivalent to
approximately HK$82,409,000) and approximately
US$8,450,155 (equivalent to approximately
HK$65,911,000) were converted into 135,095,919
and 106,308,401 new shares, respectively, at the
respective conversion prices of HK$0.61 per share
and HK$0.62 per share. Details of the conversions

are included in note 28(c).

(iii) Issue of the Scrip Shares in lieu of cash dividend
During the year, 19,673,665 shares were issued
to certain shareholders who elected to receive
the Scrip Shares in lieu of cash final dividends.

Please refer to note 28(b) for details.

(iv) Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment
During the year, the Group acquired leasehold
improvements of HK$7,059,000 (2005: Nil) which
was financed by loan advanced from a minority

shareholder of the Group's subsidiary.

BB.EEHRERNERMAE

FTEFRERS
() |iTA K E

(i)

@i

(iv)

F RN KN K BN BRKE
56,856,0007% 7T Y & FB /N 150%00%
AEEZERANCMLEZEBRER
EHRTFTNCCL BREHF Z
49,433,000 7T AN A Al & AT A]
MREFZN - BEAAR R AR #
A& A& 5 2 &5 15 B M 51 26 ©

BE 15 0] $2 JR (& 5 B R AR

FARN - AeBEMENE XD
10,565,194% 7t (A F R
82,409,000/ 7T) K& 498,450,155
E T (YHEZFHF65,911,0007 1)
ZAMRES - RENSRKRES
f%0.6 14 7T R & K0.62%8 7T 5 Al
¥ 5 135,095,919 &
106,308,401 Ix¥T & 1n - B ik
f& 2 & 15 B M 5E28(c) °

BITRERODUAREHZRE
FR - B RERWERE R A
REBSRBEKRE Z2E FRFE
7719,673,6658 %10 - FI15B 2
BIMIsE28(b) °

WEYE - BEREERE

FRN - AEBRBHEMERE
7,059,000 T (ZE ZE 1 £ :
m)  DUAREEWRBARZ —
AOBBRRBNNZERBEA -
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31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33. 48R &m s XM sF (&)

34.

35.

STATEMENT (continued)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(v) Acquisition of investment properties
In the prior year, the Group acquired investment
properties amounting to HK$97,858,000 (note 16),
out of which HK$5,300,000 was satisfied by the
deposit paid in the prior year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
outstanding guarantees given to banks to secure general
credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the amount of HK$177,200,000 (2005:
HK$163,900,000). Credit facilities in an aggregate
amount of HK$96,510,000 (2005: HK$95,800,000)
had been utilised by such subsidiaries in respect of

such guarantees as at the balance sheet date.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank and margin facilities, which
are secured by the assets of the Group, are included
in notes 15, 16, 17, 22 and 23 to the financial

statements.

34.

35.

FEHRRERF (E)

(v) WEREYZ
REBEREFIWEE 7,858,000
T (HiE16) 2 &REWME - Hep
5,300,000 7T 2 sR B Jh A = —
FEENZzEREEN -

REEER - NARG TIRITZKREER
EREEA177,200,0008 L (ZEF
# : 163,900,000 L) - EABARE
EETHEBARIMER —REERME
2B RNEER - ZEMBAFR
ZERREDEA A 96,510,000
T (ZZZHEF : 95,800,000 7T)
ZIEEmAE -

BEERME
BREAEBERTRERESEE (BEU
AEBEEERWT) 2 BHNR YT B R
EKMFF15- 1617 22K 23 ¢
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. EHE L HE
(a) As lessor (a) LA B H
The Group leases its investment properties (note AREBEESLSHSTHREER
16) under operating lease arrangements, with WEME (MHiE16) » MAE Y
leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to FHEANTFREZTHE -
five years.
At 31 March 2006 and 2005, the Group had total RN—BEXNER —EERE=A
future minimum lease receivables under non- =+—\8 AEBEBREAHEST
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling S AAI B AE AN T
due as follows: F 50 0 R U2 R R (TR © OB
mEMT
Group
rEE
2006 2005
“EERAF “TTRHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
P184 _ o
_— TR FTET
Within one year —FR 13,014 11,694
In the second to fifth years, E-EERF
inclusive (BREEMSF) 6,532 15,522

19,546 27216




................................................... Annual Report 2006 % # -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. &% fHE % H (&)
(continued)

(b) As lessee (b) LA AN & 15
The Group leases certain of its commercial REBERBREEHELZHHEHER
properties under operating lease arrangements, eETEAYME  mAmZEEN
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two FREE=4F o

to three years.

At 31 March 2006 and 2005, the Group had total RZEERFR_ZBZRAF=H
future minimum lease payments under non- =+—H @ NEBERET A HEEH
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: KEMEARTIFEFRRNEZN 2
REKEBSRIBBLBHOT -
Group
rEE
2006 2005
—EERE —TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
- o P185
TERx FET  —
Within one year —FR 130 553
In the second to fifth years, F_EFRF
inclusive (BEERME) 75 323

205 876
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3/ March 2006 Z=—EEANF=ZA=+—-A

37. COMMITMENTS 37. &
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B b SCHT sE36(b) aF alt 2 48 ‘& 10 & &
in note 36(b) above, the Group had the following FEOh - REBREFER 2 EAERAT -

commitments at the balance sheet date:

Group
r&
2006 2005
ZEBARE —ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Contracted, but not provided for BT EREE
hotel renovation B 5 B R 6,411 6,806
Authorised, but not contracted for EREERTH
hotel renovation B S BT 16,334 22,744

P186 22,745 29,550




............ Annual Report 2006 4F #i -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions in connection

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 —ZEEXNF=ZF=1—H
BHEHREALTR S
BRATBEHRREMED SHEREI
FRNAEERFBAEALTZEARS
LU N

(a) EXRKEEBEB2EBE

with the Group’s operations: AERZ :
2006 2005
—ETREF —EFTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Charter charges paid to previous  f FRIE s A A 2
cruise ship owners (note (i)): HEE (Wa@) -
Jackston Shipping Limited Jackston Shipping Limited - 15,015
Queenston Investment Limited Queenston Investment Limited - 23,100
Charter charges paid to cruise ship [ FH&HEF AZ P187
owners (note (if)): MEE (i) - —_—
Jackston Maritime Limited Jackston Maritime Limited 36,478 37,180
Queenston Maritime Limited Queenston Maritime Limited 56,120 57,200
Management charges paid to HPUATARCERE
(note (iii)): GEIODIE
Huang Shipmanagement Huang Shipmanagement
Pte. Ltd. Pte. Ltd. = 3,558
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions in connection
with the Group’s operations: (continued)
Notes:

(i) Jackston Shipping Limited and Queenston
Investment Limited were the previous owners of
the cruise ships (hereafter collectively referred to
as the “Previous Cruise Ship Owners"”) and are
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited (“Huang Group”), the ultimate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The charter charges were based on terms
as set out in the relevant charter agreements.
Details of the charter agreements have been
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 5
November 2002. On 14 July 2004, the Previous
Cruise Ship Owners disposed of the cruise ships
to two group companies (see note (ii) below) and
entered into charterparty novation deeds agreeing
to transfer all rights and benefits under the said

charter agreements to these group companies.

(i) As referred to (i) above, Jackston Maritime Limited
and Queenston Maritime Limited are the owners
of the cruise ships (hereafter collectively referred
to as the “Cruise Ship Owners"). Prior to the
Group's acquisition as detailed in note 31, the
Cruise Ship Owners are indirect subsidiaries of
Huang Group and also indirect associates of the
Group (note 20) at the time of the transactions
Subsequent to the execution of the charterparty
novation deeds and two new charter agreements
between the Group and the Cruise Ship Owners
dated 8 March 2005, the Cruise Ship Owners
received charter charges from the Group. The terms
of the charter charges are the same as the ones
as stipulated in (i) above and have been detailed

in the Company's circular dated 14 March 2005.

IBEHEALTXR Z (#)

(a) &

BASEXERERE2AEE

AERSZ (&)
Bt

®

@i

Jackston Shipping Limited
Queenston Investment Limited
BEBm2AEEA A TEHE
(AT E W BEH A1) - TR AR New
Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R AR EFZRR) 2 &
#2472 B A AlHuang Group (BVI)
Limited ([Huang Groupl) 2 &

22 EMB AT - HEB TR
Tf*ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ‘[ﬁ% Fr % 2 15 3K i
EE HEWMBEIABERA
RAIE_ZEZ_F+—-HRH
ZBEHPIRE RN _TTMF
tA+MmME - AIEwmES AR
I E & B 2w (R SOt R i)
HE I 2 — DM E R
A RERE FEEHE
MZEEE QA EEMEER
KAz o

b 3¢ ()P - Jackston
Maritime Limited} Queenston
Maritime Limitedy & B &5 ~
BEAATEBWBIBSE A
AJ) o R EE3 1 AT afall 2 A £
B EIEA  HRERAR
Huang Group 2 M E AR
RT3 5 R I8 7N 5 B R B
e N E (KTFE20) - RASE
EEmEAEAEITRARAE-ZT
TZRAFZAN\NBZEMEER
HWEMHOMBEREE B
WEAMNAEBRRKRNEESE -
FHEE 2GR E E ()P &
R IHFERARFR-F
TRHFE=A WA 2 K&
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Related party transactions in connection

(®)

with the Group’s operations: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii) Huang Shipmanagement Pte. Ltd. is beneficially
owned by certain close family number of key
management personnel of the Company. The
management fees were based on terms as set out
in the relevant agreements which have been
detailed in the Company’'s circular dated 5
November 2002. On 1 November 2004, the parties
agreed to early terminate the management
agreement with effective from 1 January 2005.

Accordingly, this transaction was discontinued.

Apart from the above, in the prior year, at 31
March 2005, the Group paid aggregate charter
deposits of HK$28,520,000 to the Cruise Ship

Owners, which was fully repaid during the year.

At the balance sheet date, current account
balances of HK$192,000 (2005: HK$10,784,000)
were due to a related company by the Group
which arose from the payments made by these
related companies on behalf of the Group. These
balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The related company is
beneficially owned by certain close family member

of key management personnel of the Company.

B 7% ¥R AR MY R

31 March 2006 Z=—EEXNF=ZA=+—A

BB EHEALXR Z (#)
(a) BXEEXKERE2Z2RERE

(M

AEXRSZ (&)
Hrer - (&)
(iii) Huang Shipmanagement Pte.

LtdAARARETEEBEABZH
TERVEE=HRE - ERE
TH AR 8 18 B 5 R P 8 2 IR RS
FoHABEHAARAARR ST
ZHF+—RARABZBEE R
TTHF+—A—H EHMA
ERPRIEERSE B -Z
THRHFEF-—A—BRBER-
It RS E LR IE o

BrEaiEIN - XF - RZZEZTR
F=—H=+—8" Kﬁlmﬂ%
BEAEAZNZHEHET A6 H
28,520,000 L E R F R Z EE
% o

WEEER - AEBER—BEER
@J BE P 45 £2 192,000/8 7T
=X HF : 10,784,000/8
) &%mﬁﬁﬁ@%%@@
AIREXAEBZNRIA - %5
ERAEET - RERERBEFEE
FHR - ZEE AR TIE AR R E
EEBABCZATEHRAEER
wmA

+

=
t
A

»H’“J%
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. HBE AL X 5 (&)
() REEMWE QR 2 VSRR
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(c) Loan advanced from minority shareholders of the

Group’s subsidiaries represented two loans

P190

advanced by two minority shareholders of the
Group's subsidiaries which amounted to
HK$46,020,000 (2005: HK$39,158,000) (the
“First Loan") and HK$131,823,000 (2005: Nil)
(the “Second Loan") at the balance sheet date.

Both loans are unsecured and interest-free.

With respect to the First Loan, pursuant to the
shareholders’ agreement entered into between the
Group and the minority shareholder, the minority
shareholder agreed not to demand for repayment
of the loan until the subsidiary has the ability to
do so and a prior consent was obtained from the
Group. The minority shareholder who granted the
First Loan to the Group’s subsidiary is also an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company’s

ultimate holding company.

With respect to the Second Loan, pursuant to a
shareholders’ agreement entered into between the
Group and the minority shareholder, no
shareholder shall demand repayment of these
loans unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders for the demand of the repayment
has been duly passed at a general meeting. In
the opinion of the directors, after confirming with
the minority shareholders, there was no intention
for the minority shareholder to demand the Group
for repayment of these loans in the next 12
months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly,

the Second Loan classified as non-current liabilities.

AlZMBLERRBRANIRER
3 £ ¥ A46,020,0008 T (=
TEZHF 39,158,000/ L)
(lHE#£E%]) 131,823,000/
T(ZZEZTRF : &) ([REE
H)  MEERHREEBARS

B o

/N

REEERME @ REAEEHR
DHRRAT L 2 R ek - DB
BRAEEEMBEARARNE
REBMBARBEZEEREBRT
EEREEER - ETAEEM
BARIBEERZLHEBRERNS
RABREEBRRAFZHEHEZEZE

MEAF -

MREERME - RIEAEER
DERRET L 2 R % - FRIE
ERRRBEFBERERZEMR
AERDPRBERAS LIE@S -
BABRRTE@E2REEXTE
e BERR KRELBRRE
HERR - PEREREBEEZRA
SENGEEREFARKT @A
NEEZEER - At - REE
RITDERIERBELE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) During the year, the Group acquired an additional
15% equity interest in an associate group from a
related company in which Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, has
beneficial interest, for an aggregate consideration
of US$7,289,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$56,856,000) (See notes 19 and 31 or the
Company's circulars dated 28 November 2005
for details).

(e) The compensation of key management personnel
of the Company has been disclosed in note 9(a)

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
convertible bonds, interest-bearing bank loans, and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review,
the Group’s policy that no trading in financial

instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

38.

39.

B 7% 3R & MY &
31 March 2006 —ZEEXNF=ZF=1—H

FREALTXR S (&)

(d F " N E R RE
7,289,000% Tt (4 # F 1
56,856,000;8 7T) A — & B i
A Us i Bt o 5 1] 2 BRSO 1500A% AR
w o MARAZEEZRRENew
Century
Limited v & # % I A F Huang
Group (BVI) Limited 5% 4 :&E
AEAERER (FEFH2HM
FI9NITHARFARN-_FTETH
FT+—AZ+NABZ@EHK) -

Investment Pacific

(e) ARAREEEBABZHEEDER
Bk M st 9(a) I ER -

MBEREERBTRRER

AEBZTZSRTABRETBRERE
7 AP RIRITER - URBEREH
FR-MEEMIAZTFZENDLA
AEEZERE - AEBESEHM
TREENAE  FINEKE SRR
NMENE SRR  MEZERLEHE
BREL -

ERBEFEEA  NEE-BHIKRTTE
EMTAEEZHRE -

AEBESMTAELEZTERBR /R
EREMEXEAR  INERR - FER
BERBESRE - EFEHHALR
mEEKERBRZEE - R m
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39 A EMEEEHEREB K (&)
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long term

debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group does not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Most of the Group’s revenue and cost are
denominated in Singapore dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group provided services only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis

and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets and
certain embedded derivative financial instruments, the
Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to

the carrying amount of these instruments.

&y 8 3 @E bz
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PR AEBIZEHAEFE 2 RHAE
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39 BANEKRESIHEBERIBE (&)

40.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and convertible bonds. The Group's policy
is that not more than 50% of borrowings should mature
in any 12-month period. 16% of the Group's debts
would mature in less than one year at 31 March 2006
(2005: 22%).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Save as discloed in note 18 to the financial statements,
subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 11 April
2006, the Group entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement to acquire a commercial property
located in Hong Kong from a third party at a
consideration of HK$39,500,000. The transaction was
completed on 12 June 2006.

40. %5

B E % E B
AEBZERABRBERBRITERR
AMKRES  RIGSESEBEMERER
MZEZFE  AEBZEEABR
AR+ @R BAEANEBEZERZL
DI ETZ 500  RZTTNF
ZA=+—H FXEEH16%ZEEK
R—FRIP(ZDZFEZTRF
22%) °

HEHAESEIR

BRI SRR M 18T BEER I - R
EEHZ  AKER_ZZTRENA
+T—HEZ—MEBREEERZE - UK
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40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued) 40 EHEEH (&)
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On 13 July 2006, the Group, together with certain
connected persons who are also related parties, entered
into a subscription agreement to subscribe for the entire
share equity interests in Worksmart Profits Limited
("Worksmart”) at par. Certain of these connected
persons and related parties are companies in which
certain directors of the Company have beneficial
interests. In accordance with the subscription
agreement, Worksmart will be owned as to 60% by
the Group. Currently, Worksmart has a wholly-owned
subsidiary, ACE Properties Pte. Ltd. ("ACE Properties”),
which has committed to acquire an office building
located in Singapore from an independent third party
at a consideration of S$32,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$160,200,000). The acquisition of the
office building, which is subject to tenancy, will be
completed on or before 27 September 2006. In
accordance with the subscription agreement, the
shareholders are required to provide interest-free
shareholders’ loans of S$23,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$113,300,000) to Worksmart for the acquisition of
the office building. Accordingly, the Group is required
to provide a shareholders’ loan to Worksmart, in
proportion to its shareholding, amounting to
S$13,800,000 (equivalent to HK$68,000,000).
Additional required working capital for the acquisition
of the office building amounting to S$12,500,000
(equivalent to HK$61,600,000) will be provided by
another connected person to the Company. Pursuant
to the Listing Rules, the acquisition of the office building
as contemplated under the subscription agreement to
subscribe for 60% equity interests in Worksmart with
the connected persons and the provision of loan from
connected person to Worksmart will constitute
connected transactions and are subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 July 2006 for
details. The transaction is expected to be completed in
September 2006.

RZBEZRFLAT=H - AEEHEZE
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42,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the
financial statements, due to the adoption of new and
revised HKFRSs during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised
to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain prior year adjustments have been made and
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
and restated to conform with the current year's

presentation and accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issued by the board of directors on 20 July 2006.

41.

42.
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